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Independent Auditors Report

To the Members of Barque Hotels Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of Barque Hotels Private Limited (the “Company”) which
comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2025, and the statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including materizl accounting policies and other explanatory
information,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (*Act’) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2025, and its profit and other
comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Audifor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Revenue recognition

See Note 27 to the financial statements

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Company is principally engaged in the | Our audit procedures included:

business of owning and operating hotels. Its | | .. . .
revenue comprises hotel revenue (including Testef:i e e euc Operaing
room revenue, food and beverage revenue LI Of By contoismover Rihe
and revenue from recreation and other U (= L S s

services) and space rental revenue. ¢+ Tested the Company's revenue recognition
accounting policies are consistent “with the

The accounting policies for different revenue
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Barque Hotels Private Limited

streams are set outin Note 2.11 to the financial
statemenits.

Revenue is a key performance indicator of the
Company and there is risk of overstatement of
revenue due to fraud resulting from pressure
to achieve targets and eamings expectations.

Considering the above, we have identified
revenue recognition as a key audit matter.

applicable accounting standards.

Using statistical sampling basis, tested the
revenue transactions recorded during the year
(including year-end cut off testing) with the
underlying documents such as invoices, bank
collections, and other relevant documents, as
applicable.

Tested the journal entries relating to revenue
recognised during the year based on specified
risk-based criteria, to identify unusual or irregular
items.

Evaluated the adequacy of disclosures relating to
revenue recognition made in the financial
statements in accordance with the applicable
accounting standards.

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment, capital work in progress, right of use

assets and other intangible assets

See Note 48 to the financial statements

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

As at 31 March 2025, the camying value of
property, plant and equipment, capital work in
progress, right of use assets and other
intangible assets amounts to INR 3,364.25
million (net of accumulated impaimment loss of
INR 138.36 million).

In accordance with the requirements of Ind AS
35 “Impairment of Assets’, the Company
periodically assesses whether there is any
indication that such properly, plant and
equipment, capital work in progress, right of
use assets and other intangible assets at cash
generating unit (CGU) level may require
impairment charge or reversal. If any such
indication exists, the Company estimates the
recoverable amount of these assets. Further
the company also periodically assesses
whether there are any impairment reversals.

To assess the recoverability of the CGU,
management is required to make significant
estimates and assumptions related to forecast
of future revenue, operating margins, exit
muitiple and discount rate. The recoverable
amount of the CGU determined based on

Qur audit procedures included:

Tested the design,
operating effectiveness of key controls over the
impairment assessment process.

Assessed the indicators of impairment (including
impairment reversal) in assets at CGU level
based on consideration of external and intemal
factors affecting the value and performance of
CGU.

Obtained
recoverable amount of CGL where indicator of
impairment (including impairment reversal) is
identified

procedures:

a.

implementation, and

management  assessment  of

and performed the following

Obtained an understanding of the Company’s
process for projecting the future cash flows for
determining the recoverable amount of CGUs.

Evaluated the key market related
assumptions such as discount rate and exit
multiple with assistance of our valuation
specialist. We also performed sensitivity
analysis over these assumptions.

Assessed the reliability of cash flow forecasts
through a refrospective review of actual

e
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Barque Hotels Private Limited

value in use, has been derived from performance in comparison to budgets.
discounted cash flow model. d. Evaluated the reasonableness of the
assurnptions used in the cash flow forecasis
Consequent to such assessment, the which includes occupancy rate, average room
Company has recorded an impairment | rate and operating margins. To consider
reversal of INR 75.29 million in the current forecasting risk we also performed sensitivity
year. analysis over these assumptions.
. - *  Evaluated the adequacy of the disclosures made
W UEYESE e L= =0 X e in the financials statements in accordance with
involvement of judgements and estimates we the applicable accounting standards.

have considered the impairment assessment
of property, plant and equipment, capital work
in progress, right of use assets and other
intangible assets as a key audit matter.

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs, profit and other comprehensive loss, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudsnt; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concermn and using the going concem basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsihilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantes that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will aiways detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

s |ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of intemal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Barque Hotels Private Limited

that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate intemal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a matsrial uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and svents
in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the pianned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably bs expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (*the Order") issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A" a staterment
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books, except for the following:

(i) the back-up of an accounting software used for maintaining general ledger and revenue
records which forms part of the 'books of account and other relevant books and papers in
electronic mode'’ has not been kept on servers physically located in India on a daily basis; and

(i) matters stated in the paragrapt 2B(f) below on reporting under Rule 11{(g} of the Companies
{Audit angd Auditors) Rules, 2014,

c. The balance sheet, the statement of prefit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Barque Hotels Private Limited

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 10 April 2025 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2025
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

the qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the paragraph 2A{b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b} of the Act and
paragraph 2B(f} below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies {Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial contrals with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B”.

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

a.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2025 on its financial
position in its financial statements - Refer Note 36 to the financial statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d (i) The management has represented that, to the best of their knowtedge and belief, as disclosed in

the Note 47 to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from botrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (*Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(i) The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in

the Note 47 to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from any
person{s} or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties™), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Parties ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii} of Rule 11(g), as provided under (i) and (ii) above,
contain any material misstatement.

The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

Based on our examination which included test checks, except the instances mentioned below,
the Company has used accounting softwares for maintaining its books of account, which have
feature of recording audit trail {(edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year
for all relevant transactions recorded in the respective accounting softwares:

In the absence of an independent auditor's report from 1 January 2025 to 31 March 2025 in
relation to controls at a service organisation for an accounting software used for maintaining the
books of account relating to payroll, which is operated by a third party software service provider,
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Barque Hotels Private Limited

we are unable to comment whether audit trail feature for the said software was enabled and
operated from 1 January 2025 to 31 March 2025 for all relevant transactions recorded in the
software.

ii. The feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility was not enabled at the database level to log
any direct data changes for the accounting software used for maintaining the books of account
relating to revenue process for the period from 1 April 2024 to 14 September 2024.

iii. The feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility was not enabled at the database level to log
any direct data changes for the accounting software used for maintaining the books of account
relating to general ledger at the hotels.

iv. The feature of recording audit trail {edit log) facility was not enabled for the accounting softwares
used for maintaining the books of account relating to general ledger and procure to pay records.

Further, for the accounting softwares for which audit trail feature is enabled and operated
effectively, we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with during
the course of our audit. Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per
the statutory requirements for record retention except for the period where the audit trail was not
enabled or operating effectively.

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(186) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
paid any remuneration to its directors during the year. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not
prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon
by us.

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:101248\W/N-100022

Shweté Kumar

Partner
Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 509822
Date: 28 May 2025 ICAI UDIN;25509822BMXIBF4519
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Barque Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(i} (@) (&) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including guantitative

details and situation of Propenty, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(i (b}

©

{d)

(e)

(i) (a)

(b)

i)

(@)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification
of its property, plant and equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified once
in a period of three years. in accordance with this programme, all property, plant and equipment
were physically verified during the year ended 31 March 2023. In our opinion, this periodicity of
physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of
its assets.No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification,

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the titie deeds of immovable property (other than immoveable
properties where the Company is the lessee and the leases agreements are duly executed in
favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company.
However, original titte deeds are under lien with banks and financial institutions for the loan
facilities availed by the Company. We have obtained independent confirmations from banks.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
{including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

The Company is a service company, primarily rendering services related to developing and
running hotels. Accordingly, it does not hold any physical inventories. Accordingly, clause
3(ii){a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks and financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets. As informed to us and as per the terms of loan agreement of such
limits, there are no requirements on the Company to submit quarterly returns or statements with
such banks or financial institutions.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments, or provided
guarantee or security or secured loans or advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms,
limited liability partnership or any other parties during the year. The Company has granted
unsecured Joan to companies during the year, in respect of which the requisite information is as
below. The Company has not granted any loans, unsecured, to firms, limited liability partnership
or any other parties during the ysar.

Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations
given to us the Company has provided loans and securities to entities as below:

&

=
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements
of Barque Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025
{Continued)

(b)

(©

(d)

(e}

(f

Particulars Security Loans
{INR in million) {INR in million)
Aggregate amount during the year
Subsidiaries™ - 2750~
Holding Company™ - 130.00

Others (fellow Subsidiary)* - -

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet

date . 147.68 ~
Subsidiaries* - 130.00
Holding Company* 5,698 =

Others (fellow Subsidiary)*

*As per the Companies Act, 2013
* Disclosed as deemed investment in the financial statements.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, in our opinion, the terms and conditions of the grant of loans provided during
the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company. Interest free loans
granted are only to protect its investment in subsidiary company and accordingly, are not
prejudicial to the interest of the Company. Further, the Company has not made investments,
provided guarantee, given security or advance in the nature of loan to any party during the vear.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in the case of loans given, in our opinion the repayment of
principal is not stipulated for the interest-free loan {(as on 31 March 2025) of INR 147.68 million
given to Paulmech Hospitality Private Limited (subsidiary of the Company) which is repayable
at the option of the borrower. Accordingly, we are unable to comment on the regularity of
repayment of principal.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than ninety days in respect
of loans given. Further, the Company has not given any advances in the nature of loans to any
party during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there is no loan or advance in the nature of loan granted falling
due during the year, which has bsen renewsd or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the
overdues of existing loans given to same parties.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion the Company has not granted any loans or
advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or
period of repayment except for the following loans to its related parties as defined in Clause (76)
of Section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)..

Related Parties
{INR in million)

Aggregate of loans/advances in nature of loan
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Barque Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025

{Continued)

Related Parties

{INR in million)
- Repayable on demand (&) 130.00
- Agreement does not specify any terms or period of 27.50
repayment {B)
Total (A+B) 157.50
Percentage of loans to the total loans 56.72%

(V)

(v)

(vi)

(vi)) (a)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, the Company has neither made any investments nor has it given
loans or provided guarantee or security as specified under Section 185 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act"). For the investments made, the Company has complied with Section 186(1) of
the Act. According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of Section 186
(except for sub-section (1) of the Section 186) of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to
the Company since the Company is engaged in the business of providing infrastructural
facilities.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the services
rendered by the Company. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company does not have Riability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and
Value Added Tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been
subsumed into GST.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion, the undisputed statutory dues including Goods
and Services Tax (GST), Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Cess or
other statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities,
though there have been slight delays in a few cases of Income-tax, GST and other statutory
dues.

As explained fo us, the Company did not have any dues on account of Duty of Customs.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of cur examination
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and
Services Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Cess or other statutory
dues were in airears as at 31 March 2025 for a period of more than six months from the date
they became payable, except as mentioned below:

Name of the Nature of the Amount Period to | Due date Date of
statute dues {INR which the payment
million) amount
relates
The Employees’ | Provident 0.18 | March 2019 | 15 April | Not paid yet
Provident Fund 2019
Page 9 of 14
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Barque Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Continued)

Name of the Nature of the Amount Period to | Due date Date of
statute dues (INR which the payment
million) amount
relates
Funds and | (Additicnal
Miscellanecus liahility due to
Provisions Act, | Supreme
1952 Court
Judgement)
Central Goods | Interest liability 0.56 | April 2021 | # Not paid yet
and Services | on Goods and to  March
Tax Act, 2017 | Service Tax 2022
and State
Goods and
Services Tax
Act, 2017

# These amounts have fallen due at various points of time during the year ended 31 March
2022.

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, statutory dues relating to Goods and Services Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Cess or other statutory dues which have not

been deposited on account of any dispute are as follows:

Name of the Nature of the Amount Period to Forum where
statute dues (INR million) which the dispute is
amount pending
relates
{Financial
Year)
income Tax Act, | Penalty u/s 1.01 | 201617 Income Tax
1961 271C Appellate Tribunal
Income Tax Act, | Addition to the 296.97 | 2016-17 Commissioner of
1961 taxable income Income Tax
{Appeals)
Income Tax Act, | Penalty u/s 0.12 | 2015-16 Commissioner  of
1961 271C Income Tax
{Appeals)

*Amount represents additions to taxable income

{viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination

of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
% Page 10 of 14
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Barque Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Continued)

(b)

©

(d)

(e

(M

x) (a)

(b}

(xi) (a)

(b)

©)

(xii}

(xii)

(xiv) (@)

(b)

of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and
borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

According ta the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us,
and on an overall examination of the balance sheet of the Company, we report that the Company
has used funds raised on short-term basis aggregating to INR 207.12 million for long-term
purposes.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from
any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiary as defined under
the Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiary (as defined under the Act).

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(x}{b) of the Order is not applicable.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company and according
to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company
has been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Crder is not applicable.

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of public limited company and accordingly the
requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 177 of the Act are not applicable to the
Company. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on
the basis of our examination of records of the Company, transactions with the related parties
are in compliance with Section 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions
have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion,
the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

We have considered the intemal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period
under audit.

%‘v Page 11 of 14

-



BSR &Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements
of Barque Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Continued)

(xv)

(i) (a)

(b)

(©

(d)

{xvii)

(xviii)

{xi)

(xx)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not part of any group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies
{Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended). Accordingly, the requirements of clause
3(xvi)(d) are not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding
financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination
of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes
us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

The requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 135 are not applicable to the
Company. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx){b} of the Order are not applicable.

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

Shwéta Kumar
Partner

Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 509822
Date: 28 May 2025 ICAI UDIN:25509822BMXIBF4519
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BSR&Co.LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of Barque Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

{Referred to in paragraph 2(A}g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

We have audited the internal financiat controls with reference to financial statements of Barque Hotels
Private Limited {"the Company™ as of 31 March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such intemal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31
March 2025, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”}.

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Managsement and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenancs of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we compiy with sthical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate intemal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures fo obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating sffectiveness. Our audit of
intemal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
intemal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The proceduras selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have oblained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opirtion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial

Page 13 of 14
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BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of Barque Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Continued)

statements for extsrnal purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasenable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degres of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBS R & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

o

'Shweta Kumar

Partner
Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 509822
Date: 28 May 2025 ICAI UDIN:25509822BMXIBF4519
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Barque Hotels Private Limited

CIN USS191DL2MBPTCITS957

Balance Sheet a5 at 31 March 2025

(AN amounis are in Rupees millions, unfess otherwise stated)

ASSETS

Mon-current assets
Property, plant and ¢quipment
Capital work-in-progress
Right of use assets
Other intangible assets
Financial asse1s
Investment in subsidiary
Other financial assels
Income tax assets
Other non-curent assets
Total non-curremt assets

Current assels
Imventories
Financial zszets
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Loans
Other financeal assers
Other cyrrent assets

Total current assets
TOTAL ASSETS
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity
Equity share capital
Orher equity

Toda] equity

Liabilities

Naon-current Wabilities
Financiul liabilites
Bomowings
Lease liabilities
Provisions
Other non-current kabilities
Total von- current lfabillties

Current liabikitles
Finamncial lisbilitics
Bomowings
Lease labilifies
Trade payables
- total ovistanding dues of micro P and small prises; and
- toml outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises
and small enterpriscs
Other financisl babilitics
Other current linbitines
Provisions
Total current UabEties

Total liabilittes

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

The notes from Mote 1 to Mot 48 form an iniegral part of these fnancial statements.
As per our report of even date attached

For BSR & Co.LLP
Chartered Accounionis
ICA! Firy Registrarion Mo.: TO1248W/W- 100022

Fartner
Membership Mo - 509822

Place: Gurugram
Drane: 28 hlay 2025

Mote

Bl L e

C-IET T ]

15
16

17
18
9
20

2l

23

)
25
%

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Barque Hotets Private Limited

Directér
DIN: 068 1 3081

Place: Gurgram
Dae: 28 May 2025

Place: Guougram
Dale: 28 May 2025

As at As at
N March 2025 31 Mareh 2024
285878 2.656.42
16627 103.30
303.90 2333
3530 .81
218.68 366.18
156.99 133.50
1.7 26.56
12,57 16.98
3,764.19 3,636.08
- 277
6717 80.85
3.37 4851
130.00 .
1.8 004
93.50 1744
32573 20061
32573 T0%.51
4.059.92 3,545.69
g3 38375
HL4D 54334
1,125.1% 2279
2,162.72 1.971.37
107.97 125.59
R 155
66.72 7195
234620 17646
346.57 AR6.96
3347 45.81
886 6.50
15273 215.18
4214 59.09
18,51 2316
629 544
613.57 T4L
2.964.77 1,918.60
4.089.02 1.B45.49
(3\26‘/ AL
Manish Bhagat Rimki Agarwal
Dvirector Company Seerealary
DIN: Q3092409 Membership No.: A42344

Placy: Gurugram
Dale: 2§ May 2025



Barque Hotels Private Limited

CIN U5S5101DL2008PTCL75957

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Al amounts are in Rupees milfions, uniess otherwise stated)

Note
Income
Revenue from operations 27
Other income 28
Total income
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 29
Employee benefits expense 30
Other expenses 33
Earnings before finance costs, depreciation and amortisation, tax and exceptional items
Finance costs 3
Depreciation and amortisation expense 32
Profit / (loss) before tax and exceptional items
Exceptional items 34
Profit / (foss) belore tax
Tax expense 8
Current tax
Deferred tax
Profit / (loss) for the year

Other Comprehensive [ncome
{tems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Re-measurement loss on defined benefit obligations 30
- Income tax relating to item mentioned above
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax

Total comprehensive profit / (loss) for the year

Earnings/(loss) per equity share, (face value of INR 10 each) 35
Basic (INR) :
Diluted (TNR)

The notes from Nate 1 to Note 48 form an integral part of these financial statements.
As per our report of even datc attached

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.; 101 248'W/W-100022

x5
%:ﬁmar

Partner
Membership No.: 509822

Director

DIN: 46813081

Place: Gurugram
Date: 28 May 2025

Plagce: Gurugram
Date: 28 May 2025

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Barque Hotels Private Limited

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
1,702.26 1,583.65
21.61 19.61
1,723.87 1.603.26
99.64 10391
246,70 224,75
835.83 822.78
1,182.17 1,151.44
54170 451.82
23835 329,12
178.83 185.75
417.18 514.87
124.52 (63.05)
(15.2% {36.18)
199.81 {26.8T)
199.31 (26.87)
(1.75) {0.88)
(1.75) (0.88)
198.06 (21.73)
5.21 0.70)
521 (0.70)
QA .
Manish Bhagat Rinki Agarwal
Director Company Secreatary

DIN; 88092409

Place: Gurugrarn
Date: 28 May 2025

Membership No.: Ad2344

Place: Gurugram
Date: 28 May 2025



Barque Hotels Private Limited

CIN USS101DL 2008 PTCI 75957

Staterment of Cash Flows for the year emded 31 March 2025
{AN amounts are In Rupees millions, tnlexs otherwise siated)

Far the year ended For the year emded
N March 2025 3 March 2924
A. Cash Dows from operating activities
Prefit / {loss) before tag 199.81 (2687
Adfusiments fbr:
Depreciation and amonisalion expense 178,83 185,15
Provision for bad and doubiful debis 035 1.4%
Fmance costs 13835 9z
Interest mcome (4.07) (2.49)
A isation olincome received in ad (523) (5.23)
R | ol provision for mpai in value of property, plant and squipment, nght (75.2%) [EINE:S]
of use assel and inlangible assets
Gain on fair valuation of land held for sale (5.00)
Provision / babilities no longer required wrilten back - {2.18)
Unwinding of di on security deposi (9.05) (799
Operating cash Mows before movcment im assets and linbilitics 523.90 435,22
Decrease in venlones 277 029
[t fd o trade ivahl 1313 (19.98)
(Increase) in other financial agsels {14.46) (0.35)
{IneTease) in other assets {14.85) (180
Increase / {decrease) in Irade payables (60.09) 76,73
Tncrease / (decrease) in other lisbilities 535 {3.42)
Increase in provisions 034 236
Increase / (decrease) in other fnancial liabililies (0,98} 274
Cash gy d f'rem operating netivit 455,11 492,84
Income taxes {paid) / refund (ne1) 16.36 {16.66)
Net cash gemerated from operating activities 47147 476,18
B. Cash Mows from investing activitics
Purchase of propeny, plant and equipmend and capital work-in progress (390,10 (77.81)
Proceeds from sale of propery, plant and equipment - 0.74
Loan given to holding company (130.00) -
Laoan provided Lo subsidiary (27.500 -
Loan repaid by subsidiary 175.00 (27.50)
Bank deposits malured 193.01 256.38
Bank deposits made {11445y (253.63)
Inlerest received 239 119
Net cash pencrated used i imvesting activities (38L.65) (99.13)
C. Cash flows from Omaming activities
Procesds from non-current borrowing (net ol upiront fes) 27862
Repayrent ol bormowings during the year (52.39) (T08. 1)
{RepaymenLyProcesds of current borrowings (net) (93.68) (287
Current borrowings - Interest fre loan fom Holding Company received 1,575.50 -
Currem borrowings - Trkerest feee boan from Holding Company repaid {1,555.10) -
Lease payments (45.81} (49.63)
Imierest free boans re¢eived from holding company - TIvo0
Finance casis paid (222.10) (319.66)
Ned cash gencrated wsed in finamcing activities {114.96) A3y
Wt imcrease/{deerease) bn cash amd cash equivakents (A+B+C) (25.14) 074
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 48.51 47.717
Cash and cash equivalenis at the end of the year 23.37 48.51
MNotes to Starcment of Cash Flows As at As M
31 March 2015 31 March 2824
L Compoments of Cash snd eash equivalents
Cash on hard .04 L
Bainnces with banks :
~ O CUTTenl aCoounts 2133 32.67
Bank deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months - 14.81
1337 4&(




Barque Hotels Privaie Limited

CIN USSI0IDL200APTCI 75957

Statemnent of Cash Flows fer the yesr ended 31 March 20258
(AN amounty gre in Rupees miflions, unless otkerwise stated)

ii. Movement Im fimancial Habillrics- B imgzs imchuding Imterest

Opening Balamce

Changes from Finamcing cash Tlows

Proceeds Fom non-current bemowings

Repayment of non-curmen! bormowings

Current borrowings - Inlerest Fee loan iom Holding Company received
Current borrowings - Imerest free loan from HoMing Company repaid
(Repaymem\Praceeds ol ¢urreni borrowings (net)

Finance cost paid

Other nen cash changes
Finance cosl expense

Closing Balance

iii. The cash flows from operaling

saction of §

iv. Movementin kease Hobililies is as follows:

For the year ended For the yesr ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

2,159.36 3,004.31

278.62 Rinki Aggarwal

(5239 (F0R.1%)

1.575.50 -

{1,555.10) B

(91.68) {3287

(222100 (319.66)

22250 zxn

251271 135436

Particulars As at 3 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Opening balinee 17140 191.63
Additions - 10.73
Amounts recognized in Statement of Profil and Loss a5 interest expense 15.85 18.69
| Payment of lease liabilities 4580 149,651
Cloging Balance (Refer Note 15 and 33 141,44 17140

The notes from Note | 10 Nole 43 [orm an mlegral part ol these finangial statements.

As per our repon of even date silached

ForBS R & Co. LLP
Charterad Accownionts
TCAI Firm Registration Ma.: 101 248W/W-100022

weta Kumar
Partner

Membership No.: 509822

Place: Gurugram
Deate: 26 May 2025

-

Far and on behall' of Board of Directors of

Barquc Hetels Private Limited

Tl IF-; Manish Bhagat
Direct Director
DIN: 0631308t DIN: 08092409
Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram
Date: I8 May 2025 D 2% May 2025

of Cash Flows has been prepared in accordance with the 'Indirect Meihod' as set out in the Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows™,

Rinki Agarwal
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Barque Hotels Private Limited

CIN: U55101DL200SPTC175957

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

1.1 Corporate information

Barque Hotels Private Limited (‘the Company”) is a Company domiciled in India. The Company was
incorporated in India on 27 March 2008 as per the provisions of Indian Companies Act and is limited by
shares.

The Company is a hotel development and investment company with focus on operating internationally
branded hotels across key cities in the Indian sub-continent. The registered office of the Company is at
Caspia Hotels Delhi, District Centre Crossing, Opp. Galaxy Toyota Outer Ring Road, Haider Pur,
Shalimar Bagh, New Delhi, India, 110088.

1.2 Basis of preparation

A. Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with the resolution of the Company’s
Board of Directors on 28 May 2025.

Details of the Company’s accounting policies, including changes thereto, are included in Note 2 and
Note 2.1.

B. Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functional
currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest millions, unless otherwise indicated.

C. Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items,
which are measured on an alternative basis on each reporting date:

Items Measurement Basis
Financial assets and liabilities i.e., derivative Fair Value
instruments




Barque Hotels Private Limited

CIN: U55101DL2008PTC175957

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

D.

i)

Use of estimates and judgments

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgments and estimates that affect the
application of Company’s accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized prospectively.

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties at the reporting date that have a significant
risk of resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are:

Provisions and contingencies

The assessments undertaken in recognizing provisions and contingencies have been made in accordance
with Ind AS 37, ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’, which involves key
assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources.

ii) Useful lives and impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment, capital work-in

progress, right to use assets and other intangible assets

The estimated useful lives and recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment, capital work-in
progress, right to use assets and other intangible assets are based on estimates and assumptions
regarding the expected market outlook, expected future cash flows, obsolescence, demand, competition
and known technological advances. The Company reviews the useful lives and recoverable amounts of
property, plant and equipment, capital work-in progress, right to use assets and other intangible assets
at the end of each reporting date.

iii) Employee benefit obligations

iv)

Employee benefit obligations (gratuity and compensated absences) are determined using actuarial
valuations, which involves determination of the discount rate, salary growth rate and mortality rates.
Due to the estimates involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is
highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

The fair values of financial instruments recorded in the balance sheet in respect of which quoted prices
in active markets are not available are measured using valuation techniques. The inputs to these models
are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment
is required in establishing fair values.

Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in
assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. Also, refer
Note 42 for further disclosures.




Barque Hotels Private Limited

CIN: US5101DL2008PTC175957

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounss in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

v) Recognition of deferred tax assets / liabilities

Recognition of deferred tax assets/liabilities involves making judgements and estimations about the
availability of future taxable profit against which carried forward tax losses can be used. A deferred tax
asset is recognised for unused tax losses and deductible temporary differences, to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

vi) Leases
Critical judgements in determining the lease period:

Ind AS 116 required lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted
with an option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably certain. The
Company makes an assessment on the expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis and thereby
assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any options to extend or terminate the contract will be
exercised. In evaluating the lease term, the Company considers factors such as any significant leasehold
improvements undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the termination of the lease and the
importance of the underlying asset to the Company’s operations taking into account the location of the
underlying asset and the availability of suitable alternatives. The lease term in the future possible
periods are reassessed to ensure that the Icase term reflects the current economic circumstances.

Critical judgements in determining the discount rate:

The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being
evaluated or for the portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

vii) Measurement of expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables

The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its trade
receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected
life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

E. Current and non-current classification

Based on the time involved between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash
or cash equivalents, the Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle for determining
current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities in the balance sheet.

F. Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values,
for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. The Company has an established control
framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. The finance team has overall responsibility
for overseeing all significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values, and reports directly
to the Holding Company’s Chief Financial Officer.
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)

They regularly review significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party
information is used to measure fair values then the finance team assesses the evidence obtained from
the third parties to support the conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS,
including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

e In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
e In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as
far as possible. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the
inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

* Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

» Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

* Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair

value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety at the same level of the
fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in Note 39.

Material accounting policies
Property, plant and equipment

Recognition 2and measurement

Property, plant and equipment including capital work in progress are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses if any.

Cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for use as at the reporting date are disclosed as capital
work-in-progress.

Cost comprises the purchase price, import duties and other non-refundable taxes or levies, borrowing
costs if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working
condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring
the site on which it is located. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase
price.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major compone, }gﬂ(’pf@@ verty, plant and equipment.
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Subsequent costs and disposal

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment is added to its book value
only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the
Company. All other expenses on existing property, plant and equipment, including day-to-day repair
and maintenance expenditure, are charged to the profit or loss for the period during which such expenses
are incurred.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of property, plant and equipment are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized
in the profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method (SLM) to
allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over their estimated useful lives (determined by the
management based on technical estimates). The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. In case of a revision, the unamortized
depreciable amount is charged over the remaining useful life.

Depreciation on addition/ (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e., from/ (up to) the date on which
the asset is ready for use/ (disposed off).

The management estimate of the useful life of various categories of assets is as follows:

Asset Category* Management Useful life as per
estimate of Useful | Schedule IT to the
Life Companies Act, 2013
Building 5-60 years 60 years
Computers and accessories 3-10 years 3-6 years
Plant and machinery 5-30 years 15 years
Furniture and fixtures 3-8 years 10 vears
Vehicles 8 vears 8 years

* For the above class of assets, the management based on internal technical evaluation, has determined
that the useful lives as given above best represent the period over which management expects to use
these assets. Hence, the useful lives of few assets included in the above asset categories are different
from the useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II to the Companies Act 2013,

Frechold land is not depreciated.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property plant and equipment’s are
reviewed by management at each reporting date and adjusted prospectively, as appropriate.

Intangible assets

Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company are measured initially at cost. After initial
recognition, an intangible asset is carried at its cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated

impairment loss, if any.
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits from th

specific asset to which it relates.
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3)

Amortisation

Intangible assets of the Company represents computer software and are amortized using the straight-
line method over the estimated useful life (at present three to ten years). The amortization peried and
the amortization method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. If the expected useful life of
the asset is significantly different from previous estimates, the amortization period is changed
accordingly.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the profit or loss
when the asset is derecognized.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other
financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or financial
liability is initially measured at fair value plus or minus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that
are attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing component
is initially measured at the transaction price.

ii. Classification and subsequent measurement

Finencial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

- Amortised cost

- Debt investment measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

- Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

- Equity investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:
— the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and

— the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measure at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated
as at FVTPL: =
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— the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

~— the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are
measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company
may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at
amortised cost or at FVOCI or at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arise,

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is
held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed, and information is
provided to management. The information considered includes:

— the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice.
These include whether management’s strategy focuses on eaming contractual interest income,
maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the
duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale
of the assets;

— how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s management;

— the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and how those risks are managed; and

— the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such
sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not
considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company’s continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic
lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the
financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash
flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:
contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

- tetms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;

prepayment and extension features;
terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse
features).
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Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses,
assets at including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss.
FVTPL

Financial assets | These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
at amortised cost | effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment
losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is
recognised in profit or loss.

Debt investments | These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income
at FYOCI under the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses
are recognised in OCI. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in
OCI are reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are
investments recognised as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents
at FVOCI arecovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses

are recognised in OCI and are not reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is
classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such
on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses,
including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is
also recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition
Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in
which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet but
retains ¢ither all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred
assets are not derecognized.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled or expire,

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows
under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the
modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

[
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iv,

Vi,

Vil

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet
when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and
it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Compound financial instruments

Compound financial instruments issued by the Company comprise compulsorily convertible debentures
denominated in INR that can be converted to equity shares at the option of the holder, when the number
of shares to be issued is fixed and does not vary with changes in fair value.

The liability component of a compound financial instrument is initially recognised at the fair value of a
similar liability that does not have an equity conversion option. The equity component is initially
recognised at the difference between the fair value of the compound financial instrument as a whole and
the fair value of the liability component. Any directly attributable transaction costs are allocated to the
liability and equity components in proportion to their initial carrying amounts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component of a compound financial instrument is
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The equity component of a compound
financial instrument is not remeasured subsequently.

Interest related to the financial liability is recognised in profit or loss (unless it qualifies for inclusion in
the cost of an asset). In case of conversion at maturity, the financial liability is reclassified to equity and
no gain or loss is recognised.

Interest free loans

The Company has obtained interest free loans from its holding company. Such interest free loans are
measured at fair values determined using a present value technique with inputs that include future cash
flows and discount rates that reflect assumptions that market participants would apply in pricing such
loans. The difference between the transaction price and the fair value of such loans have been recognised
as equity component in the books of the Company. The loan component is subsequently measured at
amortised costs and interest expense is recognised using effective interest rate method. On modification
in the terms of such loans wherein they became repayable at the option of the borrower resulting in it
becoming perpetual debt such loans including accrued interest up to the date of modification have been
treated as other equity.

Non-convertible debentures

The Company had issued non-convertible debentures (NCDs) which have been treated as financial
liability in books and carried at amortised cost.

Further, the Company has identified the redemption right as equity component. As the risks associated
with the underlying variable are not closely related to the host instrument, the equity component has
been separately accounted for from the NCDs in other equity. The equity component was fair valued
through profit or loss at each balance sheet date till their maturity in the previous year.
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viii. Modification of financial assets and liabilities

ix.

4

Financial assets:

If the terms of a financial asset are modified, the Company evaluates whether the cash flows of the
modified asset are substantially different. If the cash flows are substantially different, then the
contractual rights to cash flows from the original financial asset are deemed to have expired. In this
case, the original financial asset is derecognized and a new financial asset is recognized at fair value,

If the cash flows of the modified asset carried at amortized cost are not substantially different, then the
modification does not result in derecognition of the financial asset. In this case, the Company
recalculates the gross carrying amount of the financial asset and recognizes the amount arising from
adjusting the gross carrying amount as a modification gain or loss in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities:

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified, and the cash flows of the
modified liability are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified
terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial lability
extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

Concessional overdrafl facility

The Company has availed overdraft facility from banks at an interest rate lower than the market rate,
because its holding company has pledged fixed deposit with the banks for this overdraft facility. This
difference between the interest rate charged by the bank and market rate is treated as deemed equity
provided by the holding company, with a corresponding debit to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment

Impairment of financial instruments

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets measured at
amortised cost.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and debt
securities at Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-
impaired” when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:
-significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
-a breach of contract such as a default or being past due for two years or more;

- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not consider
otherwise;

- it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; or
- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.
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The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses, except for
the following, which are measured as 12 month expected credit losses
- debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and
- other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.c. the risk of default occurring over
the expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.
Loss aliowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit
losses.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument,

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the
instrument is less than 12 months).

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum
contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and
informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Company
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance
on portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default
rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At
every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed.

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets,

For debt securities at FVOCI, the loss allowance is charged to profit or loss and is recognised in OCL
Wrire-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that
there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that
the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay
the amounts subject to the write- off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject
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3)

6)

7

to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts
due.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each reporting date if there is any indication of
impairment based on internal/external factors. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s (or cash generating unit’s) fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and risks specific to the asset (or cash generating unit (CGU)).

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Impairment
loss recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated, if any to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU
(or group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not subsequently reversed. In respect of other assets for
which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the Company reviews at each reporting
date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists, An impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such
a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had
been recognised.

Inventories

Inventories which comprise stock of food and beverages is carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost of inventories comprises all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventory to their present location and condition. In determining the cost, first in first out ("FIFO")
method is used. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs to make the sale.

Government grants and subsidies

Grants and subsidies from the government are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that (i)
the Company will comply with the conditions attached to them, and (ii) the grant/subsidy will be
received.

Provisions (other than employee benefits)

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
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If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance
cost. Provisions are reviewed by the management at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the
current best estimates at each reporting date.

8) Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past e¢vents whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, or a present obligation whose amount
cannot be estimated reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its
existence in the financial statements.

9) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences arising from foreign
currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred by
the Company in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to
acquisition and/or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of cost of that asset. Capitalisation of borrowing costs
is suspended in the period during which active development is delayed due to interruption, other than
temporary interruption. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit
and Loss in the period in which they are incurred,

10) Employee benefits
(a) Short-term employee benefits

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are classified
as short-term employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, short-term bonus and ex-
gratia. The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits to be paid in exchange for employee
services is recognised as an expense as the related service is rendered by employees.

(b) Post-employment benefits
Defined contribution plan — Provident fund and Employee state insurance

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays specified
contributions and has no obligation to pay any further amounts. Provident fund scheme and employee
state insurance are defined contribution schemes. The Company makes specified monthly contributions
towards these schemes. The Company's contributions are recorded as an expense in the statement of
profit and loss during the period in which the employee renders the related service. If the contribution
already paid is less than the contribution payable under the scheme for service received before the
balance sheet date, the deficit payable under the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the
contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services
received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-
payment will lead to a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.
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Defined benefit plan — Gratuity

The Company's gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The present value of obligations under such
defined benefit plans are determined based on actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary
using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to an
additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final
obligation.

The obligation is measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used
for determining the present value of obligation under defined benefit plans, are based on the market
yields on government securities as at the balance sheet date, having maturity period approximatin g to
the terms of related obligations.,

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income
and are never reclassified to profit or loss. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation
resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognized immediately in the profit or loss as past
service cost.

Other long-term employee benefit obligations — Compensated absences

The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilized accrued compensated absences and utilize
it in future service periods or receive cash compensation on termination of employment. Since the
compensated absences do not fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which
the employees render the related service and are also not expected to be utilized wholly within twelve
months after the end of such period, the benefit is classified as a long-term employee benefit. The
Company records an obligation for such compensated absences in the period in which the employee
renders the services that increase this entitlement. The obligation is measured on the basis of
independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. Re measurements as a result of
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in the profit or loss.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to a customer i.e. on transfer of control of the
goods or service to the customer. Revenue is net of indirect taxes and discounts.

Contract asset represents the Company’s right to consideration in exchange for services that the
Company has transferred to a customer when that right is conditioned on something other than the
passage of time.

When there is unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of time is required to do invoicing,
the same is presented as Unbilled revenue.

A contract liability is recognized if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier)
from a customer before the Company transfers the related goods or services and the Com pany is under
an obligation to provide only the goods or services under the contract. Contract liabilities are recognized
as revenue when the Company performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods
or services to the customer).

-
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Barque Hotels Private Limited

CIN: U55101DL2008PTC175957

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Room revenue, sale of food and beverages and other services

Revenue is recognized at the transaction price that is allocated to the performance obligation. Revenue
comprises room revenue, sale of food and beverages, recreation and other services relating to hotel
operations. Revenue is recognised upon rendering of the services and sale of food and beverages which
is recognised once the rooms are occupied, food and beverages are sold and other services have been
provided as per the contract with the customer.

Space rental

Space rental income comprise amount earned for use of hotel premises space by other parties. The
income is recognised when services are rendered as per the terms of the contract and no significant
uncertainty exists regarding collection of consideration.

12) Recognition of dividend income, interest income or expense

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which the Company’s right to receive
payment is established.

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.

The “effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument to:

- the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or

- the amortised cost of the financial liability.

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability.
However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest
income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset, If
the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.

13) Foreign currency translation
Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the profit
or loss, within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the profit or
loss on a net basis.

14) Income taxes

Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that it relates to a business combination, or item recognised directly in equity or in other
comprehensive income.




Barque Hotels Private Limited

CIN: U5S5101DL200SPTC175957

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year
and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax
payable or receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received that reflects
uncertainty related to income taxes, if any. It is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable rightto set off
the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or
simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.
Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits.

Deferred tax is not recognised for
* temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that:
- is not a business combination; and
- atthe time of transaction (i) affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss and (i) does
not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they
can be used. Future taxable profits are determined based on the reversal of relevant taxable temporary
differences. If the amount of taxable temporary differences is insufficient to recognize a deferred tax asset
in full, then future taxable profits, adjusted for reversals of existing temporary differences, are considered,
based on the business plans of the Company. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and
are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized; such
reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improves.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting
date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets and they relate to income tax levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable
entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis
ot such tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

15) Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it
may earn revenue and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with
any of the Company’s other components. and for which discrete financial information is available.
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating deciston maker (CODM). In accordance with Ind AS 108, “Operatmo Segments”, thg
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Barque Hotels Private Limited

CIN: U5S5101DL2008PTC175957

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

operating segments used to present segment information are identified on the basis of information
reviewed by the CODM to allocate resources to the segments and assess their performance.

16) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares, except where the results would be anti -
dilutive,

17) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises of cash at banks and on hand, cheques on hand and short-term,
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

18) Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets held for sale comprising assets and liabilities are classified as held for sale if it is
highly probable that they will be recovered primarily through sale rather than through continuing use.

Such assets are generally measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to
sell.

Any impairment loss on a disposal group is allocated first to goodwill, and then to the remaining assets
and liabilities on a pro rata basis, except that no loss is allocated to inventories, financial assets, deferred
tax assets, employee benefit assets, investment property or biological assets, which continue to be
measured in accordance with the Company’s other accounting policies.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale and subsequent gains and losses on re-
measurement are recognized in profit or loss.

Once classified as held for sale, property, plant and equipment are no longer depreciated.

19) Measurement of earnings before earnings before finance costs, depreciation and amortisation, tax
and exceptional items

The Company has elected to present earnings before earnings before finance costs, depreciation and
amortisation, tax and exceptional items as a separate line item on the face of the Statement of Profit and
Loss. The Company measures carnings before eamings before finance costs, depreciation and
amortisation, tax and exceptional items on the face of profit/ (loss) from continuing operations. In the
measurement, the Company does not include finance costs, depreciation and amortisation expense and
tax expense.

20) Exceptional items

On certain occasions, the size, type or incidence of an item of income or expense, pertaining to the
ordinary activities of the Company is such that its disclosure improves the understanding of the
performance of the Company. Such income or expense is classified as an exceptional item and
accordingly, disclosed in the financial statements.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(4l amounts in Rupees millions, inless otherwise stated)

21) Leases: Transition to Ind AS 116

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MICA™) through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2019 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules,
had issued Ind AS 116 “Leases” which replaced the existing lease standard, Ind AS 17 and other
interpretations. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles, for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases for both lessors and lessees. It introduces a single, on- balance sheet leases
accounting model for leases.

Company as a Lessee

On inception of a contract, the Company (as a lessee) assesses whether it contains a lease. A contract is
or contains a lease when it conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset
(ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period
of the lease and (iii}) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and
a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a
term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low
value leases, the Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease.

Lease contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Company allocates payments
in the contract to the lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices and
applies the lease accounting model only to lease components.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for initial direct costs incurred, lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, any asset restoration obligation, and less any lease incentives received. They are subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Right-of-use assets are also
adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities. Unless the Company is reasonably certain to obtain
ownership of the leased assets or renewal of the leases at the end of the lease term, recognised right-of-
use assets are depreciated to a residual value over the shorter of their estimated useful life or lease term.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including ‘in-substance fixed’ payments) and
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, less any lease incentives receivable. ‘In-
substance fixed” payments are payments that may, in form, contain variability but that, in substance,
are unavoidable. In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.
The lease term includes periods subject to extension options which the Company is reasonably certain
to exercise and excludes the effect of early termination options where the Company is not reasonably
certain that it will exercise the option. Minimum lease payments include the cost of a purchase option
if the Company is reasonably certain it will purchase the underlying asset after the lease term.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

22)

23)

Lease liabilities are re-measured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset if the
Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option and
any lease modification,

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the
period over which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs. In respect of variable leases
which guarantee a minimum amount of rent over the lease term, the guaranteed amount is considered
to be an ‘in-substance fixed” lease payment and included in the initial calculation of the lease liability.
Payments which are ‘in-substance fixed’ are charged against the lease liability.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments
have been classified as financing cash flows.

Company as a Lessor

At the inception of the lease the Company classifies each of its leases as either an operating lease or a
finance lease. The Company recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on a
straight- line basis over the lease term. In case of a finance lease, finance income is recognised over the
lease term based on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the lessor's net investment
in the lease. When the Company is an intermediate lessor it accounts for its interests in the head lease
and the sub-lease separately. It assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease with reference to the right-
of-use asset arising from the head lease, not with reference to the underlying asset. If a head lease is a
short-term lease to which the Company applies the exemption described above, then it classifies the
sub-lease as an operating lease.

If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, the Company applies Ind AS 115 Revenue
from contracts with customers to allocate the consideration in the contract.

Investment in subsidiary
Investment in subsidiary is carried at cost, less any impairment in the value of investment, in these
separate financial statements.

Expenditure

Expenses are accounted for on the accrual basis and provisions are made for all known losses and
liabilities.

2.1. Changes in material accounting policies

1) Material accounting policy information

The Company adopted Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendment to Ind AS 1) from 1 April
2023. Although the amendments did not result in any changes in the accounting policy themselves,
they impacted the accounting policy information disclosed in the financial statements.

The amendments require the disclosure of ‘material’ rather than ‘significant’ accounting policies. The
amendments also provide guidance on the application of materiality to disclosure of accounting policies,
assisting entities to provide useful, entity-specific accounting policy information that users need to
understand other information in the financial statements.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

2) Deferred tax related to asset and liabilities arising from a single transaction

The Company has adopted Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction (Amendments to Ind AS 12} from 1 April 2023. The amendments narrow the scope of the
initial recognition exemption to exclude transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting differences
€.8., leases and decommissioning liabilities. For leases and decommissioning liabilities, an entity is
required to recognise the associated deferred tax assets and liabilities from the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented, with any cumulative effect recognised as an adjustment to retained
eamings or other components of equity at that date. For all other transactions, an entity applies the
amendments to transactions that occur on or after the beginning of the earliest period presented.

The Company has not recognized deferred tax asset in books considering the significant carry forward
unabsorbed losses (Refer Note 9).

The Company has previously disclosed the deferred tax on leases by applying the 'integrally linked'
approach, resulting in a similar outcome as under the amendments, except that the deferred tax asset
or liability was disclosed on a net basis. Following the amendments, the Company has disclosed a
separate deferred tax asset in relation to its lease liabilities and a deferred tax liability in relation to its
right-to-use assets as at 1 April 2022 and thereafter.
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Barqus Hetels Private Limited

CIN U510 DLYSBPTCI75957

Notes to the fimanclal statemenis for the year ended 31 March 2025
(AHf amounts are in Rupees miflions, unless otherwise stated)

5 Imvestrment in subsidiary As at As at
31 March 2025 3 March 2024

Investments in equity instraments - at cost (unguoded)

Pawlmech Hospitality Private Limited, a fully owned subsidiary 120.72 120,72
1,997,552 (31 March 2024 - 1,997,552) equily sharcs ol INR 10 cach, fully paid-up

a . in subsidiary {At costy
Inlerest free loans extended 1o Paulmech Hospiialily Private Limited* 147.68 295,18
Less : Provision [or impairment in value of investmen in subsidiary (49.72) (49.72)

218.68 36618
Agpregale amounl of unquoled investmenis 120,72 120.72
* These are interest frec loans exiended by the Company 1o its subsidiary and are repayable at the option of the subsidiary (perpeiual debt). The loans are provided for busi qui of subsidiary.

6 Non-turrent financlal assets - Others As at As at
{Unsecured considered good) 31 March 2025 1 March 2024
Bank deposits (due 1o mature afier |2 months from the reporting dale) * # 62.80 51.54
Seccurity deposils 94.19 8196

156.99 133.50
* In¢ludes bank deposits under ITen amounting 1o TNR 62.20 {31 March 2024 - INR, 51.14)
¥ including interest d on bank deposits INR, 0.60 (31 March 2024 - INR, 0.40)
T Other tax assets As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Tax deducted al source 11.70 26.56
11.70 26.56




Barque Holels Private Limited
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Naotes to the inancial stalements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Al amounts are in Rupees mitlions, untess otherwise stated)

& Imcome iax
Az The major ts of i tax exp fil ) are
Recognised in profit ot loss
Current tax,
Deferred 1ax

Recoguised directly in Other comprehensive income
Income tax on other comprebensive income

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

B. Reconciliation of effectlve tax rate (fax exp and the

Loss before tax

Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate

Tax effect of:

Non recognition of deferred taxes on temporary differences
Non-deductible differences

Others

Effective tax rate

C. Deferred iax assets / liabilities

Deferred 1ax assets

Unabsorbed business losses and depreciation
Provision for employee benefits

Loss allowance for doubtful debts
Impairment in value of investments

Lease lishilities

Ouhers

Deferred tax liabilities

Property, plant and equipmenl, capital work-in-progress and other intangible assets

Right of use assets

Deferred tax assets (met)

Deferred tax (assets)/ liabilities recogmized *

g profit multiplied by Company's domestic tax rate}

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 1024
% Amount % Amount
199.31 (26.87)
2517 50,29 2517 (6.76)
{35.09) {70.12) 33173 {39.14)
- - (0.22) 0.06
9.92 19.33 {356.68) 9584
As al Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

1,223.68 1.262.00

800 T.52

.85 on

1251 12.51

35.60 43,14

29.15 31.38

1,314.79 1,357.26

163.58 131.04

76.49 81.38

240,07 21242

1,074.72 1,144.84

* As at year end, the Company has significant unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward busmess losses as per Income tax Act, 1961, In view of absence of reasonable
certainty of sufficient future taxable profits, deferred tax assets has been recognized 1o Lhe extent of deferred tax liabilities only.
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Notes to the fwancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2028
(Al amounts are in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

8 Imcome tax (continued)

D). Movement in temporary dilferemces

31 March 2025

Deferred tax differences
Balance as at genel_'aud bu.l ot Balance as ar
Particulars 1 April 2024 "“03'“;;:::;'"8 FY 31 March 2025
{A) (B} {C=A+B)
Property, plant and equipment, capital work-in-progress and other intangible assers (131.04) (32.54) (163.58)
Right of use assets 131.33) 4.39 {76.49)
Lease liabilities 43 14 {7.54) 35.60
Iy in value of investments 12.51 0.00 12.51
Unabsached busingss losses and depreciation 1,262.00 (33.32) 122868
Loss allowance for doubtful debts 0.71 0.14 0.85
Provision for employee benefits 7.52 048 8.00
Others 3138 2.231 29.15
Total 1.144.84 {7012} 1.074,72
31 March 2024
Deferred tax differences
Balance as at generated but mot Balance as at
Particvlars 1 April 2023 recognised during FY 31 March 2024
(A) 2023-24 {C=A+R)
(B)
Propenty, plant and equipment, capital work-in-progress and other intangible assets (119.94) (1110 {13104
Right of use assels (81.58) 0.20 (8133}
Lease liabilities 48.23 15091 43.14
Img in value of in 1251 - 1251
Unabsorbed business losses and dep 1,334.05 {72.05) 1.262.00
Loss allowance for doubiful debis 0.36 0.35 0.7]
Provision for employee benefits 6.94 0.58 7.52
Others 3341 {2.03) 31.38
Total 1,.233.98 (89.14) 1.144.84
E. Tax losses and unabsorbed depreclation carried forward
Tax losses for which no deferred tax assel was rcognised with expiry date as follows
As at
31 March 2015
Amount Expiry Date
{Financial Year)
Business loss 224.30 2025-26
Business loss 494.41 2026-27
Business loss 261,74 202728
Business loss 445,30 202829
Business loss 579.26 2029-30
Business koss 679.02 2030-3]
Unabsorbed depreciation 2,197.89 Never expire
Asat
31 March 2024
Amount Expiry Date
{Financial Year)
Business loss 127.30 2024-25
Business loss 224.30 202526
Business loss 494.4) 2026-27
Business loss 26114 2027-23
Business loss 445,30 2028-29
Business loss 57926 2029-20
Business loss 679.02 2030-31
Unabsorbed depreciation 2,197.3¢ Never expire
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Bargee Hodels Private Limited
CIN Us5HIDL2MIBPFCI 75957
Notes 1o the financial slatements for the year ewded 31 March 2025

{4if amounts are in Rupees millions, unless olfrerwise stated)

9

Other noa-curvend assets As at Asal
{Linseenred, considered pood) 31 March 2025 3 March 2024
Capital advances 7.34 10,54
Advawces other tkam capital advances
Prepaid expenses 523 6.44
1357 16.58
Inventories As at Asat
{vadued af fower of cost and net realfsable vaiue) 31 March 2023 3 Mareh 2024
Food and beverages n
- .77
Currest inancial assels - Trade receivables As at A3 at
Uit secured) 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Trade receivables
- considered good 511 68.68
- cradit impaired 1.88 163
Unbilled revenoe
- congidered good 1145 1318
1056 £$1.59
Less: Loss allowance (3.39} {2.84)
¢7.17 085
2} The Company's exposure to ¢redil risk and lass allowances relaved to tmde reeelvables are disclosed in Noie 39
b For recevables pledged against borrowings, refer 1o Note 17 and Note 21
c) Refer to note 38 for receivables from related partias,
Trade receivables ageing schedule
As at 31 March 2025
Outstanding for following periods from dute of transaction
Particulars Usbilicd Revenue | Less than ¢ monihs | ¢ mooths-1ycar | I-2years | 2-3years | More thand years Tatal
Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good LL4% 5118 4.57 1.498 - - GRE8
Undisputed Trade receivables — eredit impaired - - - - [ISX] .65 L8
Total 1145 51.18 457 148 1.23 .65 .56
As at 31 March 2824
Outstanding for following periods from date of i
Particulars Unbilled Revewse | Less thaw 6 mowths | 6 mmenths-1yesr | 1-2ycars | 2-3years | Morethan 3 years Touak
Undisputed Trade receivables - considered 1318 6d. 46 2zl 093 Q.08 - 3186
Undisputed Trade reecivables — credit impaired - - - .90 a.07 086 1.83
Tal 13.18 #4.46 an 1.83 .15 0.86 #3.6%

bl 1

The Company does not have any dispuied

and any receivabl

which have signifi

inerease in credit tisk as a 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024,
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Notes to the financtal statemenis for the year ended 31 March 2025
(4l amounts are in Rupees millions, uniess otherwise stated)

12

13a

13b

14

Current financial assets - Cash and cash equivalents As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Cash on hand 1.04 1.03
Balances with barks :
- on current accounts 22.33 32.67
- in deposit accounts (with original maturity of less than 3 months)* = 14.81

2337 48.51

* including interest accrued on bank deposits amounting te Nil (31 March 2024 - INR 0.04)
Current financial assets - Loans As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
To related parties
Intercorporate toan to holding company * 130.00

130.00 -

* The Company has provided loan to SAMHI Hotels Limited, the holding company. The loan is repayable on demand and carries an interest rate of 10% p.a. (31 March 2024 -

Nil).
Cucrent finanecizl assets - Others As at As at
{Unsecured, considered good) 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Bank deposits {due to mature within 12 months from the reporting date) * 0.41 0.04
Other receivables (refer note 38) 11.28 =
11.69 .04
* includes interest accrued on bank deposits amounting to INR 0,03 (31 March 2024 - INR 0.01)
Other current assets As at Asat
{Unsecured, considered good) 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Balance with government authorities 55.57 46.86
Advance to suppliers 21.47 13.04
Prepaid expenses * 15.36 16.75
Staff advance 1.10 0.79
93.50 T7.44

*Includes current portion of non-current prepaid expenses amounting to INR 2,59 (31 March 2024 - INR. 1.96)




Barque Hotels Private Limied
CIN USS10LDLEMSPTCITS957
Notes to the Mmancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

(AN amounts are in Rupees millions, iintless otherwise siated)

As ar As al
15 Equity share capital 31 Mavch 2425 3 March 2024
Number of shares Amount Nomber of shares Amognl
Auihorised share tapital
Equity sharcs of INR 10 cach 33.378975 38379 18378975 38379
I8 3TE7S 6T 38378975 34879
Issued, subseribed and fully paid wp
Equity sharcs of INR 10 cach 38,375,080 383,75 38375080 383715
3I5275,080 35175 8375080 383,75
) Reconciliation of the equity shares outstanding at the beginnlng and at the end of reporting perivd
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2015 31 March 2024
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Ameunit
Authorised share caplial
Atthe beginning of the year 1§,373.975 38179 38,378.975 38179
Bakance ot the end of the year 3,83, 78,975 3.7 13370975 8110
Issued, subscribed and Totly paid up
Al the beginning of the year 38.375,080 kExYes 383,375,080 18375
Balance at the end of the year 33,975,080 38374 38375000 38375

b) Rights, preferences amd restrictions atlached (o equity shares

The Company has only one class of ¢quity sheres having the par vatue of INR 10 per share. Each holder of equity share is cotitled 1o gne vole per share. The cquity shares are eolitked o receive dividend as and when

declared. {n the event of liquidation of the Company, the holder of equity sharcs will be entitled 1o reccive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential . The distrit will be in
propoftion to the numbzr of ¢quity sharcs held by the sharcholders.
) Details of shareholders holding more thaw 5% equily shares
Name of sharchotder
As at Ag ot
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Number of shares %4 of holdimg Number of shares % of boldlag
Equity shares on INR 10 each
SAMH! Hotels Limited, Holding Company * 38,375,080 10045 38375.080 100%
"1 equity share is beld by Mr. Gyana Das as a noménee sharcholder
As per records of the Company, including its register of sharcholders/ bers and other declamtions received from sharchold ganding beneficial interest, the above sharehalding represents both legal and beneficial
ownership of sharcs.
d) Mo shares have been allorted without payment of cash or by way of bonus shares or bought back during the period of five years i diatcly preceding the Bak Sheel datc.
«) Deetails of promolers shareholding as at year end :
As at 31 March 2025
o Promoter Mo. of shares at ihe beginging|  Change during the No. of shares at the % of Total Shares % change during the year
of the year year end of the year
| SAMEIL Hotels Limited (Molding Company) 3.83.75.080 - 3.83.75.080 106%

As at 31 March 2024

Sao Promoter No. of shares at the beginning] Change during the | MNo. of shares at the % of Total Shares % change during the year

of the vear year end of the year
| SAMEHI Hotels Limited (Holdimg Company) 38.375.080 - 31.83.75.080 100% -
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Notes to the Mnancial statements Tor the year ended 31 March 2025

f4ll amounts are in Rupees millions, uniess otherwise stased)

16 Other equity

Securilies premium

Retaimed samings

Equity component of concessional overdeaft Facility

Equity comporent of interest free loans from Holding company
Equity component of convertible PIK obligation

Equity comp of fully compulsorily Ttible det

) Securities premiom
Balance at the beginning of the year
Balance at the end of Lhe year

As at
31 March 2025

1,546.11
(4.912.96)
13.69
320033
710.06
179,17

T41.40

Asal
31 March 2024

1.546.11
{5.111.02)
18.69
320033
71006
17917

54334

1,546.11

1,546.11

1,546.11

1,546.11

Securities premium is used 1o record the premium received on issve of shares. It is utilized in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2013,

b} Retained ¢carnings

Balance at the beginning of the year

Profit / (loss) for the year

Transferred from other comprehensive income
Balance at the end of the year

Retained i the of accumulated profitsi(losses) of the Company.

= TEH

¢} Other comprehensive i -R ement of defined benefit plans (met of tax)
Balance at the beginning of the year

Remeasurements of defined beneii liebility / asset (net of tax)

Transferred to retained eami

Balance at the end of the year

Remeasurements of defined benefit liability / asset comprises actuarial gains and losses,

d) Equity comp t of ional overdraft facility
Balance at the beginning of the year
Balance at the end of the year

(5,111.02)
15931
{1.75)

(5.08327)
(26.87)
(0.38)

(4,912,96)

(5,111.02)

(1.75)
1.75

{0.88)
0.88

18.69

18.69

18.69

18.69

This represents the impact of overdraft facility availed by the Company at an inlerest rate kower than the market interest rale from the holding company,

©) Equity comp t of fully pulsorily convertible debemtures
Balane at the beginning of the year
Balance at the end of the year

This represents the fair value of squity comp of fully compulsorily convertible debenrures,

1) Equity componeat of convertible PTK obllzatisn
Balance at the beginning of the year
Balance at the end of the year

179.17

17907

17917

17917

710.06

710.06

710.06

710.06

This represents the fair value of convertible PIK obligation of non-convertible debentures. In earlier years, the Holding company has setiled convertible PIK obiigation through issus of squity shares

of SAMHI Hotels Limited (Holding Company).

2} Equity component of interest free loans from Holding company

Balance at the beginning of the year

Add : Loan from Holding Company received - recognized directly in other equily
Balance at the end of the y=ar

3.200.32

2.467.33
733.00

320033

320033

This represents Lhe equity component of the interest free loan received from SAMHI Hotels Limited, the Holding Cormpany, Below are the terms of unsecured loan from Holding Company :

- Loan 1 be considered as perpetual debt
- Nil rate of interest
- Repayable at the option of' the Company.
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Barque Hotels Private Limited
CIN Us510]1 DL20SBPTC 175957

Notes to the financial staterncnis for the yesr ended 31 March 2025

{4l amounis are inn Rupees mitlions, unfess atherwise stated)

18 Non-carrent financial Habilitics - Lease liabillties

Lease liabilitics (refer note 43)

MNon-current provisions

Asat As At
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
107.97 125,59
107.97 125.59
Asat As at

3 March 2025

31 March 2024

Provision for employee beneflts
Gratity (Refer note 30) 3.96 2,97
Compensated absenees (Refer note 303 4.83 4.58
8.79 7.55
20 Other non-corrent liabilitics As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Income received in advance §6.72 71.95
6§6.72 71.95
21 Currcnf financial Kabilitics - Borrowings Asat Asat
(Secured) 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Curtern maruritics of long-term borrowings (Refer nate 17) 22.30 49.41
Cash credit and overdraft facilities from bank (secured) * 24337 337.55
I, d, repoyable on d. 4
Interest free loan from Holding Company (refer note 33) 2040 -
34657 386.96
*Includes interest 1 ing o MR 035 {31 March 2024 - INR 2.§8)
Particulars Sanctioned Amount Imterest rate charged per anmum Repayment Termas Security detsils
(KR Miliens) As at 31 March A3 at 31 March
2025 2024
'Cinibank, N4, 40000 | 3 months T-bill rate| 3 months T-bill rate| Repayable on i) First exchisive mocigage on the Assels of
— Margn {3.75%)| - Margm (3.75%)| dernand. borrgwer and Ascats of Co- Borrowers (SAMH]
Le 9.69% i 9.60% Y Business Hoteb Private Limited and Argon
Hotels Private Limited), inchiding mongage aver
leasebold riptus for leased asgels.
ii} Hypolhecation on (he ivables and Bank
acgounts

#) 99% of share pledge of he borrowers shares)
and Non disposal undenaking on the batance un-

pledged from SAMHI Hotels Limited.
iv) Corporate Guaraniet of SAMHI Hoteks
Limited.
22 Current inancial liabilities - Lease liabllitics A5 At Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Lease liabilities (refer noie 43 ) 3347 4581
3347 45.81




Bargue Hotels Private Limited

CIN US5101DL2008PTC175957

Notes to the lnancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Al amounts are in Rupees millions, unless otherwise siated)

23 Current financlal Liabilities - Trade payables As at As at
31 March 2925 31 March 2024
Trade payables
- total outstanding ducs of micro enterprises and small enterpriscs; and 8.86 6.50
- total owtstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterpriscs 152.73 215,18
161.5% 221.68

2} Refer note 38 for duss to relacd partics
B) The Company's exposure to liquidity risks related to trade payables is disclosed in Note 39.
) Refer note 42 for dischosures under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006 (MSMED)

Trade payables Ageing Schedule
Asat 31 March 2025
Ly ding for following periods from duc datke of i I
Particulars Acecrued expenses | Less than 1 year 1-2 yeary 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
MSME - 7.32 0.29 0.25 0.50 8.86
Others 84.34 66.10 114 0.65 - 152.73
Total 84.84 73.92 143 0.9 .50 161.59
As at 31 March 2024
O ling for following periods Irom due date of tr
Partlculars Acerucd expenses | Less than | year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Taotal
MSME - 5.75 0.25 0.50 : 6.50
Others 62.90 151.40 0.68 0.20 - 21518
Total 62.90 157.18 .93 0.7 - 221.63
24 Carrent financial liabilities - Qthers As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Employce rctated payables 0.72 22.35
Payable far capital assets 17.35 s
Other payable (refer note 38) 0.65 -
Interest acerved but not due on borrowings {refer note 17) 42 1.03
4214 59.09
25 Other current liabilities As at Az mt
31 March 2025 M March 2924
Advance from customers 586 6.72
Income received in advance 523 523
Statutory dues payable 14.42 11.21
28.51 1316
26 Current provisions As at As ol
31 March 2028 31 March 2024
Provision for cmployee benefits
Gratuity (refer note 30) 2.57 1.83
Compcensated absenees (refer nate 30) 3.72 3.61
629 5.44
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3uru )
mi UU[L“'&Q/

T

'




Barque Hotels Private Limited

CIN US5101 DL 2MSBPTC175957

Notes to Hhe Mnancial statemenis for the year ended 31 March 2025
(A# amounts are in Rupees midfions, unless otherwise sated)

27 Revenue from operations For the year ended For the year ended
A1 March 2025 31 March 2924
Sale of products and services
- Room revenwe 1.536.66 1.408.63
- Food and beverage revenue 144.35 155.67
- Beereation and other services 18.57 16.05
1,699 58 1,580,335
Other operating revenves
- Space rentals 268 330
2.68 X ]
1,702.26 1.583.65
The contract liabilitics primarily velate to the advance consideration received from for which is gnized when the performance obligation is
overd services delivercd. Advanee collection is recogrised when p is ] before the related perf: bligation is satisfied. This includes adh
jved from the lywards R .3 gnised once thc perfommance obligation is met Le. on Toom slay sale of fpod and beverage.
Excess of revenue over inveicing is recorded as unbilled Revenuc gniscd im the S of Profit and Loss is same as the contracied price.
As al Asal
Contracl liabilities 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Advanee from cusiomers 836 672
The amount of revenue of INR 549 {31 March 2024 INR 4.42) d in ad from balance at the beginning
of the peried.
Trade Receivables 6217 B0.85
Note: Considering the nature of busingss of the Company, the above irde receivables is convened into cash within the same operating cycle
I8 Other income Far the year ended Farthe yenr ended
31 March 2028 3 March 2024
Imterest income from financiel assets at amortised cost
- bank deposits 2.57 232
Unwinding of discount on sceuriry deposit 9.05 7.99
Interest om income tax refiund 1.50 -
Interest on advance recoverable - 117
Provision / liabilitics ne longer mquuwl writicn back - 238
A igation of income received in 523 523
Insurance income 3.26 L35
Miscellancous income - .17
LK) ST
2% Cost of materials consumed For the year emded For the year ended
31 March 202% 31 March 2024
Consumption of food and beverages
Inventory at the beginning of the year 277 31.06
Add: Purchases 9687 103.62
Inventory at the end of the year = 27N
Bl 10591
30 Employee benefits expense For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 125 31 March 2024
Salarics, wages and bonus 200.60 18l.68
Conmibution to provident fund and other fumds (refir 'a' below) 14.02 12,55
Compensated abscnces (refer ' below) 361 577
Siaff welfare cxpenses 2847 24.75
246.70 22475

a, Defned Contvibution plans

d, - e

The Company makes contributi lasasp af empl salaries, in respect of qualifing emplovecs wwards Provident Fund. Labour
Welfare Fund and Employees' Stale fnsurance. which are dcﬁncd conmbuuon plans. Thc Company has no obligations other than to make the specificd contributions
The contributions are charged o profil or loss as they acorue, The amoun) prised as an exp 5 contribution to Provident Fund, Labour Welfare Fund

and Employces® State nsurance for the yoar aggregated 1o INR 13.02 (31 March 2024 - INR 12.55). Also refor note 36,




Barque Hotels Private Limited

CIN LUS5101DL20SPTC1TS95T

Neotes i the [inancial sistesments for the year ended 31 Mareh 2025
{Alf amounis are in Rupees miltfons. wnfess ovherwise siased)

B Compemsated absences

The Principal used in d ining the obligation are as given below:

Particulars

Driscounting rate (p.a}
Future salary ingrease { pa)

¢, Defined Benefit Plan

For the year ended
31 Mareh 2025
%
6.49
5.50

For the year ended
31 March 2024
a
T.15

5.50

The Company has 2 defined benefit granity plan, Every emploves who has completed five years or mare of service gets 3 granity on departore at 15 days selary (last
drawn salary) For cach complered year of service or pan \hereof i excess of six months. The schome is not funded.

These plans typically expest the Company to ial risks such as: investment risk, inherent interest rate risk , longevity risk and salary risk.

lavestment risk

The prasent value of the defined benefit plan Labilicy {denominated in Indian Rupce) is caleulated using a discount raie which ks determimed by reference 1o marke! yields at the end

of the reperting pariod on governmt bonds,

Inherewd interest rate risk

The: defincd benefil obligarion ealeulared wsces a discount rate based on government bovds, If bond yiclds Gall, the defined benefir obligation will tand to increase:

Lomgeyity risk

The present vabie of the defined benefir plan liability is caleubied by reforence 1o e best estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during avd afler their emphoyment. Ao

increase in the Kfc oxpectancy of the plan pardeiparis will increase the plan's liabdliy.

Salary risk
Higher them cxpected increases in sebary will increase the defined benefii obligation

The following tables summarise the companents of net benelit expense recogmized in profit or bss and

a) Expense recogmised in statement of profit and loss

Current service cost
Imerest cosi
Total Imchuded in "Empl trenefits expense’

b) Remeaswrements recogmized direetly [n other comprehemsive income

Met ial {gain¥loss ized in the yoar from:
- changes in d pii

~¢h m ial P

- changes in eaperience adjustments

A t gnized in other camprebensive income

¢} Change in present value of beneflt obligation

Prescnt value of obligation as at the boginning of the year
Current service cost

Interest cost

Remeasurements of defined benefit liability / asset (nel of tax)
Benefits paid

Presewt value of obligatien as at the end of ibe year

dj A 1o be gnired im Bal Sheet

Present value of the defined benefit obligation al the end of the year
Funded siatus
Net liability recognized in the Balance Sheet

Non-current
Current

gnized in the Balance Sheat for the said plan;
For the year emded For the yesr ended
M March 242% 1 March 2024
100 0,89
1.34 0.23
143 1.12
For the year ended Fer the year ended
31 Marew 2025 31 March 2024
0.70) {1.03)
0.7% (0.10)
1.70 201
1.75 .56

For the year ended

For the year ended

3 Moarch 2025 3 March 2024
480 33
1.09 0.39
034 0.5
1.75 0.88
(1.46) (0.51)
6.53 4.80
As ot As at
31 Moarch 2025 31 March 2024
653 430
.53 4.80
95 297
257 1,83
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Noies to the finamcial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
{Al emounts are in Rupees milfions, wnless otherwise siated)

¢} The Principat assumgptions used in determining the gratwity beneiit oblization sre as given below:

Asat As at
31 March 2025 31 Mareh 2024
Ecomomic assumptions % %
Discounting raie (p.a.} 649 715
Fuoture salary increase (pa.) 5.50 5.50

The discount rate is gencrally based upon the market yiclds avalable on Government bonds 3t the accounting date with a torm that makches that of the liabitities. The
weighted average duration of the defined benefit abligation is 0.92 years (31 March 2024 - 0.91 years)

The salary grownh rate takes account of inflation. scniority, f ion and other rek factors on long term basis.

As at As at
Demographic asswimptions 31 March 2025 31 Mareb 2024
Retirement Age (ycars) 58 58
Withdrawal Rate
Ages
Upto 30 Years 7% 8%
From 31 to 44 years Té% T3%
Above 44 years TE% Ta%
Momnality rate 100% Indian assured lives  100% [ndian assured lives

mortality (2012 - 14) mortality (2012 - 14)
1) The Company’s best esli of exp for the next year i IMR 8.7 (31 March 2024: INR 1.01)
. Semsltiviry anafysis
R bly possible changes at the reporting date to onc of the relevant ial ptions. holding other pi would have affocted the defined
benefit obligation by (the amomnis shown below,
31 March 2925
Increase * Decrease *
Discount rate {0.5% movement) {0.06) .06
Future saiary growth (0.5% movement) 0.06 (0.06)
A1 March 2024
Increase * Decrease *

Discount rate {0.5% movement) (0.04) 0.04
Future salary growth (0.5% movement} 0.04 (0.04)

Although the analysis does not take scoount of the Full distribulion of eash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the
assumptions shown,

* Positive amount rep i in provision and negative amount rep d inp
£} y profide of defined benefit obligati
As ar

Yeer 31 March 2025
Ole | Year 257
192 Year 294
2403 Year 0.65
3tod Year .14
4105 Year 003
5106 Year .01
& Y gar onwards Q.18

653

Asat

Year 31 March 2024
Dol Year 1.8}
I eo2 Year 2.18
2103 Year .49
Yo d Year N1
4125 Year 002
Sto 6 Year .01
& Year onwards [ 8 -3

4,80
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Notes (¢ the financial stalements for the year ended 31 March 2025
Al ameunss arg in Rupess millions, wunless stherwise siated)

3

32

33

35

Flnance costs

Interest expense on financial liabilities carried aL amorlised cost on
Loans from banks and financial institutions

Interest expense on lease Jighilities

Interest expense on delay in deposit of statutory dues

Other finance cosls

Less: Transferred (o capital work-in-progress

Depreciation amd amortlsation expense

Dopreciztion on property, plant and cquipment
Depreciation on Righi-af-use assels
Amortisation of intangible asseis

Other expenses

Rates and taxes

Training cxpenses

Power, fucl and walcr

Renl {refer Note 43)

Commission

Management and incentive fees
Repair and maintenance

- Building

- Machinery

=Qihers

Teavelling 2nd conveyance
Communication

Insurance

Provision for bad and doubtful debis
Consumption of siores and supplics
General adminisiration expenses
Contraclual labour

Payment Lo auditors {refer bolow) *
Legal and professional charges {refer note 47}
Adventi and business p i
Miscellancous expenses

*Payment to auditors
Statutory audit
Reimburscment of expenses

Exceptbonal ltems

R | of provision for imp
use assel and intangible asseis (refer nole 483,
Gain on fair valuation of land held for sale (refer nole 17,

Earnimgs per share {EPS)

in value of property, plant and equipment, right of

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 1 March 2024
22220 28059
15.85 1869
005 024
58 2950
(6.56) i
13835 32002
For the year ended Far the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
157.15 165,24
1943 18,63
2.25 1.88
l‘.l"ll‘8=3l 185.75
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
14.69 17.98
516 140
92405 o130
133.74 118,51
13241 123.18
82.40 1457
11.80 10.94
22.96 26.40
03¢ 0.2
1639 18.23
26.15 2258
6.26 597
0.55 142
38.54 63.03
12.11 11.19
55.48 50.97
24 242
8210 121,98
59.74 5797
0.47 0.05
835.83 $20.78
220 120
0.22 0.22
142 1.4
For the year ended For the year ended
3 March 2025 31 March 2024
7529 {3118}
- (5.00)
(75.20) (36.18)

Basic EPS is calculaled by dividing 1he loss for the year aiributabl
the year.

holders by the weighwed ge number of equily sharcs outstanding during

Diluted EPS is caleulaled by dividing the loss for the year atributable (o the cquity sharcholders by the weighied average oumber of equily shares oulstanding
during the year plus the weighted average number of equity sharcs that would be issued on conversion af all the dilulive potential equity shares inle cquity

sharcs,

Net loss anribulable Lo cquily sh

Weighted average number of cquily sharcs owlstanding during Lhe year for caleulation

ol basic EPS

Weighled average number of equity sharcs outsranding during the year far caleulation

ol diluied EPS

Nomina| value ol equity shere (INRY
Basic loss per share (INR)

Dilured loss per share (INEL)

For the year ended
3t March 2025
159,81

33,375,080

38375080
10.00

52

iz

For the year ended
3 March 2024
26.37)

33ATS,080

33375080

10.00
(0.70)
(0.10)
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
{All amounts are in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

36 Contingent liabilities and commitments

37

(o the extent not provided for}
For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining 1o be executed on capital account and others, and 33.39 151.77
not provided for

Contingent liabilities

(i) The Company is subject to legal proceedings and claims on account of Hosur land dispute. During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company had received a
tavourable order from the High Court of Kamataka wherzin the High Court has quashed the proceedings and directed Kamataka Industrial Areas Development Board
(KIADB) to release the compensation of INR 29.84 to the Company. Subsequently the opposing parties moved applications before lower courts seeking multiple
reliefs against which the Company has filed counter ¢laims and appeals. Despite the favourable order from the High Court of Kamnataka, KIADB has passed an order
to continue to deposit compensation amount with the civil court during current year. The Company has filed a Writ Petition challenging the aforesaid order of KIADB.
The management is of the view that based on the merits of the arguments put forward and facts of this case, the outcome is likely to be in the favour of the Company
and no provision is required to be created in the books.

(ii) The Company had received an assessment order for financial year 2016-17 whereby an addition of INR. 296,97 had been made to the total income of the Company.
The addition pertains to unreasonable share premium under Section 56(2)(viib) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and unbilled revenue, not included in income offered to
tax. The Company has filed an appeal before the Commissioner of Income-tax (Appeals) against the said addition which is pending for disposal.

(iii) The Company had received a penalty order ws 271C of the Income-tax Act, 1961 for financial year 2016-17 whersby a penalty had been imposed on the
Company of INR 1.01. The Company had filed an appeal before the Commissioner of Income-tax (Appeals) against the szid penalty order which is pending for
disposal. During the period ended FY 2024-25 the Company has received an negative order wherein the penalty was confirmed inrelation to which the Comapany has
preferred appeal with ITAT (Delhi) and the same is pending for disposal, Based on the merits of the arguments put forward, the Company is of the view that the
outcome will be in its favor and no provision is required to be created in the books.

(iv) In February 2019, Suprene Court of India in its judgement clarified the applicability of allowances that should be considered to measure obligations under The
Employees' Provident Funds and Miscellangous Provisions Act, 1952. The Company has been legally advised that there are interpretative challenges on the application
of judgement retrospectively and as such does not consider there is any probable obligations for past periods. For the period 1 March 2019 to 31 March 2019, the
Company had made a provision for provident fund contribution in the books of accounts amounting to INR. 1.58, subsequent to which based on legal advice, the
Company had reversed the provision amounting to TNR 1.40 in the previous year ended 31 March 2020,

(v) Applications have been filed before the Commissioner under the Employee's Compensation Act, 1923 by the legal heirs of two empioyees of the Company's Hotel
situated in Gurgaon and had met with an unfortunate fatal accident approximately. seven hours after end of their shift. By way of the aforesaid applications, the
families of the deceased were seeking amounts upto TNR. 7.00 from the Hotel allegedly claiming that the accident had occurred during and arising out of the course of
their employment against which the Company had reasonable grounds to contest. During the current year, the case has been dismissed in default, since the claimants
failed to appear before the authority.

Operating Segments

The Holding Company's Chief Executive Officer has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker ('CODM!), since he is responsible for all major decision
w.r.t. the preparation and execution of business plan, preparation of budget, planning, alliance, merger, acquisition and expansion of any new facility, CODM has
examined the Company's performance from product and geographic perspective and has identified a single business segment i.¢. "Developing and running of hotels”,
hence no specific disclosures have been made.

A. Information about products and services
The Company primarily deals in one business namely "Developing and running of hotels", therefore product wise revenue disclosure is not applicable.

B. Information about geographical areas
The Company provides services to customers in India. Further, there are no assets located outside India.

C. Information about major customers (from external customers)
The Company does not derive revenue from one customer which would amount to [0 per cent or more of the Company’s revenue.
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Nofes to the finsacial ststements far the year emded 31 March 2425
(Al omounis are in Rupees milfions, unless otkerwive stared)

38 Reloded party diseloswres

af Relaled party aad narere of related party retavonship where coatrol cuksts:

Nome of related panty

SAMHI Hatels Limited

Pavlmech

ity Privaie Limited

2P

b Related partics with wham iransactions have laken place during the current yearfpreviows year:

Deseripaion of relatieaship

Name ef related party

$SAMHI Hotzls Limited

Company

Subsidiary

Paulmech Hospitafiry Private Limited

Fellow "

ACIC Advisory Privais Limitod iw.cf, 10 August 2023}

Feliow Subsidiary

Aspent Hotels Private Limiled

Fellow Subsidiary

SAMHI JV Business Houete Privare Limited

<) Refaled party transactions dwring the currcat year/previows year:

Farticolars

Holding Company

Fellow

viSubsidiary

At Mareh 2025

31 Mareh 2024

3 March 2025

2 Mareh 2024

Repaymem af Toan aives

{Pautmech Hospitaliry Privese [ imited

L75.00

Modificating im terms of Joan gives - Classificd 3 deomed investment

Paulmech Hospitality Privaie Limiled

267.68

Unzeeured Joan given - directly recosmized o decmed ipvestment

Paulmech Hospitaliey Private Limited

27.50

27.50

Interest free oan fram Holding Company received - dsed in other cquity

SAMHI Hotels Limited

Carremt borrowinps - Interect free loan from Holding Comeany received

SAMHI Hotels Limited

L575.50

Current basrawings - Interest free leaa Grem Holdisg Company cepaid
SAMHL Hotels Lamited

1,555.10

Current loan te heiding

SAMHI Horels Limited

130.00

Interest income on unsceurcd loan

Paulmech Hospitalivy Private Limited

15.28

Lepel sad prafessianal foes {imchmding capitalised amoust in CWIF

SAMPI Hotels Limtited

SR 75

121.25

ACIC Advisocy Private Limited

208

Other payables

SAMHI Hotels Limiced

065

| Reimbursement of expenses incurred

| SAMH] Hotels Limited

38

.19

Sambi J ¥ Business Hotels Private Limited

.05

Ascent Hodels Privae Limited

.05

Reimly meat of expeases ceccived

| Pauimech Hospitality Private Limited

1128

Reveme from operations

SabdH! Hotels Limired

In addition o mansactlons mentioncd above,
~The Holding Company has given a

for refund of p

Pre. Led, {"Licensor”) in case of cancellation of te Operating Sorvices agresment with the operator.
- The Company has provided securivies 1o s fellow subsldiarics (SAMHI JV Business Hoels Private Limited mud Argon Hotcls Private Limited) amounting TNR 5,698 (31 March 2024 - INR

Tee 12 InterContinental Heatels Groyp (India) Privare Limited {~Manager™) / TnierConinental Hoels Group {Asia Pacific)

3.698),

Particulars 31 March 2025 1 March 2024
« Samhi FY Business Hotels Private Linite 4,360 4,360
- Argon Hoeks Private Limilad 1,308 1.338
(Represents the limits sanciioned by baoks and Financial insrinations o fellow subsidiaties on account of the securiry

given by the Company) 1

- Refer iote 17 and 21 for the securities gusraniiens provided' roceived by the Company on behalf of its relaicd entities for boans obiained irom banks and financial instincion.

) N,
0 Gur%am r-;.
~
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Notes tg the finsncial statemems for the year ended 31 Morch 2025
(Al amounts are in Rupees millions, unlerr otherwise staied)

38 Relaled party disclosures (confinued)

& Reloted party balances a5 at year end

Particl Halding Company Fellow Subsidiary/Subsidiary
31 March 202% 31 Muarch 2024 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Equity component of Fully compulserily convortible debentires
SAMHL Houcls Lirmived L7917 1747 -
Equity co of. L wrerdralt facility
SAMHI Hatets Limited 18 6% 13.68 -

Equity companest of imternst iree kams from Halding compary
SAMHI Houels Limited 320033 3.30.33 -

Equity composcnt of evvertible MK
EAMHI Hotels Limited 710.06 TI006 - -

Curvent barrowings

SAMHI Hotels Limived 2040 - - -
Cwerent loans

SAMHI Haiels Linited 13000 - = -
Trade payables

SAMHI Hotets Limited 351 L34 89 - -
Ascent Hoels Private Limiied . . - 0.05

Puyable for capital avsety
ESAMHI Haiels Limived I.R7 |5.85

Trode receivables
SAMHI Hotele Limited . 0.03 -

Other receivabhes
Paylmech Hospitality Private Limited - - 1128

Ouher payabl
SAMHMI Hotels Limited 0.65 - - =

Investmenl im subsidisry
Paulmech Hginlity Brivate Limired - - 120,12 120,72

Pravitian for impairment in vales of imvestments in subsidiory

Paukmech Hospitality Private Limited - - 49.72 4972
Deemed investmment - Unsecured interest free loans
Paulmech Hospitlity Private Limited - - 147.68 205.18

Outstanding balanoes at the year-end are wnsecured and are sertement occurs in cash,
For the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024, the Company has not recordsd any mpaiement of recxivables refating o amounts owed by retated paries, This ssssssmen is undertaken at
each reponing period.

<
;39 Gurg&l‘am %
—
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Notes to the linanciel statements for the yoar cnded 31 March 2025
Al annnnis are in Rupees miflions, ualesrs opherwite sared)

39 Finascial inseroments — Fair vahies and risk management

A) Fimancial insbromeats by category and fodr valup

The bedow table izes the jud and estj made in ining the fair vabues of the Nnancial i hat ane (a) eed ond d an fair vahoe and (b) moasured a0 amortised cost and for which Fair vabees are disclosed in the
financial stalements. To prwide an indicetion aboud the reliabitity of the inguts used in determining Fair valus, the Company has classified its {inencisl instruments into the three bovels presoribed under the aceourng stndard.

|Particulars As ot 31 March 1025

Level ol Fair Valuc Through Profit|  Fair Valoe Throagh Amortised Cost

hicraschy or Loss (FYTPL) Qiher Compreheimsive

Imcome (FYTOCH
Financial asseis
Ien-current Minancial assets - Others - - 136,99
Currem finaneid asseis - Trade receivables - 11T
Curent financial assts - Cash and cash equivalems - - 2337
Current (inascll assets - Others - - 11.69
Cwrrend [inancial asses - Loans 130,00
Total Bnanclal assees - - 8.2
Financkal labilltios
I Tinancial Habilivies - By = ] - 1,162.72
on-currend financlal Habilines - Lease [abilin - . 107.97
Currend flnancial lisbiliws - Curront bomrowings ] a - 346,57
Currend. (inancial liabilivics - Trade payables - . 151.59
Curternt financial labilitics - Lease lobiliies - - 3347
Current financial labilives - Others - - 424
Total financial liabilities - - 385446
| Particulary Az at 31 Morch 2024
Laovel sf Fair ¥alue Threugh Profil|  Fair ¥alue Throsgh Amortised Cosl
hierarchy ar Loss (FYTFL) Orher Comprehensive
loncome {FVYTOCL)

Fimancial assels
Fon-curnent (nancial assets - Others 133,50
Current (inancial assews - Trade roccivabhes 8085
Currenn Griancial aszets - Cash and cash equlvalents - 48.51
Current inancial assets - Oibers - (i
Tatal fimncial zsscty - - 262,90
Financinl Lahiliies
Non-currenl Mnancial | K% - Borrowings 2 - - 1,971.37
I Tinancial lisbiliics - Lease liabilil - - 12559
Current financial labilities - Current borrowings 2 38656
Current Bnancial labiiies - Trade peyables = B 22168
Currend financial Tigbilities - Louse labilines - - 4381
Current fnancial Hebiliies - Cthorg - - 59.0%
Total fi - - 2818.50

Financial assets and lahilities measured at amortised cost - Falr value measurements

‘The (air value ol trade reccivables, cash and cash cquivalents, othver bank balamces, ather cwron fnancial assos, cumment borrowings, rade payables, and ather cwrent financial liabilities approximaie their camying amownts, due 1o their shon-lerm rsture.
Iniere rabes o0 non b ings {from Mrancial insiiution and tank) are equivalent o the markel mic. Such borrowings are conwscted a1 Nosting rates and raves are reser 1 short intervals. Accordingly, the camying valne of such borrowings approsimates
Tair valug.

Fair valug of bank deposits inchuded In other non-curment financial assels and boan Lo subsidiary icluded in pon-currerd loans are cquivalcm Lo their camying amound. ad the inerest raic on them i equivalent (o market rile.

The carrying valuz of scourily deposins and leas: hinbilities approximates the fair values a5 on the reporting date, as these are carricd al amonised cast and arg based on Lha el present value of the anticipated futare cash (lows using spplicable discount rai:
B} Mezxsurcmend af Gair valucs
Fair values are calegorised into diflerent keveds n 3 (air value hietanchy bascd on Lhe inpats used in the valualion teehniques. There has been oo 1ransfer botween Level |, Level 2 and Level 3 For the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024

There have been no transfors in cither divection for 1he yeors ended 31 March 2025 ood 31 March 2024,
The Company”s pelicy is o recogness Irensions into and wans fors gul of fair value hicrarchy levels as at the eod of te reporing period.

C) Financial rish management
Risk management framework

The Company”s actvilses eapose 31 > o viricry of financia? risks: marke risk, coedit sk and Tiguidiny sk

Uhe | holding Company™s Cluef | :naocial DTicer undee 1 dirsctions of te Board of Diretors smplemonts Gnancil nsk mansgemen, pelicis acress te Company. | e Company's risk picics are esabdished 1o rdentufy ond unotyse the msks feod
by e Compuuy, to o1 appropnans nsk Twmats and conrgs, L moanor nsks and sdharmce tg limins i order 10 mirimice e Mnancial impuct of such nsks, The risk mansgement policies and systems are reviewed regulary Lo refles chamees i markes conditions
b the Company s ot iics

/
IOJI; S
1l(:;\.'l
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Notes to the Minanclal stacements far dbt year anded 31 March 2025

(Al amonnts ara in Ropees miblioas, nnfess ovherwise siared)

i. Credic riak
Credin risk iz the risk of fnancial loss 1o the Company il a o party (o & finencil i Tailz 10 meer ks conmracwal obligations. The camying amount of financial acsels represent Use maximum crodin risk eaposure. The Company has aredit
poliches in place and the cxp b, dit risks are d o 2 cugoing basis

The Company's policy is to plate cash and cash equivalens and olber bank halances with banks and financial instilution counterpantics with goad eredit raling,
The Company has given security deposits (0 various sisuatory aulhoritics and vendors for socuring services from dbem aod remial deposits for employes sccommedations

In mispeot of credit meposwres from trade recelvables, e Company has cslablished a eredit policy under which cach new customer is analysed individually or creditwonhiness before entering into contract. Credil limits are cstablished for cach customer, reviewed
regularty and any sakes exceading those limits require approval fram ths sppropriale authority

The Company an
mOoniloring cusiomer credi risk,

ity expected Cmdll basses i n Tespect of Lrade reccivables. The managemont uscs a simplified approach (or Lk purpose of computation of cupecied credit loss For irade receivables. In
whether they are an individual or legal entity, their geographical location, industry and cxigtence of provious financial diflicolties, If any,

for
arc grouped

Impat that rep
dintgs 0 Lherr eredil ch

There arc v significamt conconirations. of eredil risk within the Company.
The Company considers a financial asset 1o be in default when:

= the debior L unllkely Lo pay its credit obligations io (e Group m full: or
+ the fnancial assed is more than 1w years past due

as a1 V1 Mareh 2025 is less than & months: 0.70%, 6 months - 1 year- 11 6%, 1-2 years: 47,91 % - 82.0%%, and morc than 2 years: 100%

The provislon manrix used for loss alk on irade

3% Financial Jnstruments - Fair ralocs and risk managemest (ceatinoed)
R Watiom of loss all .
Fuwr the year ended For aht yoar ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Opening balance: el ) 135
Changes in loss alkowance (%L 149
Closing balance 3.5 284
. Liguldity risk
Liquidity rigk is the risk Lhat the Company will encounta difMicully in meciing Lhe obligations associsted with s frencial Gabiliics that am: w"od by dolivering cash or ancther financial assel. The Company™s approach 1o managing lauldity i ko cnsure, ag far
as possitde, thal it will have sufficient Fiquidity 1o meet iis lisbilities when they are due, ender both normal and stressed conditions, withou i e losses or rskmg damage 1o Compeny's repulation,
Management monitors rofling forecasis ﬂl'llle Company’s liquidity position and cash and cash equivalenis on he basis of expesied cash Mlows Lo osure it has suMici cash to mest op I necds. Such takes ino The Compeny's
debi refi plams, undraw g Tecilitics and covonant comphiance,
Lhimate responsibility for liquidity sk management recis with the board of direstors, which has esiablished an appropriate liquidity risk i k for the of the Company’s shorl-lerm, modium kom and long-lorm funding and
liquidity manegemont roquircmends
[2) Exposure ¢+ liguidity risk
‘The Following are the ining I of financiad lisbiitics ai the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted and do o include inlorest
Conlvaciusl cash Mlows

3l March 2915 Carrying ameunt Total 0-1 year 1-2 years 25 yeary More than 5 years
Kin-curmend bormowing s 116272 186 55 . 141.25 H36.60 TALLID
Currenl bomowings 346,57 32617 32607 - . -
Lease liabilitics 141.44 sy 3347 362 4337 pritr ik |
Current Trado payables 161.59 15028 160.28 . - .
Other gurrent finencial ligbilities. 42,14 41.4% 4149 = = -

283446 303208 S61.41 174,87 681.97 1.613.83

Ceatractusl cash flowa

3 March 2024 Carrying amsunt Total #1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years Mare than 5 yeary
Bon-curremit bomowings. 1.971.37 1.994 46 - 46784 145782
Currenl bortewings 8696 38696 38696 - - -
Lease Habilitles 17140 3603 4581 3347 6928 Hiar
Currend Trade payables 22168 22168 21468 - ] -
Dby current finasclal labilides 59.09 %09 5009 = = -

LE10.50 302302 71354 182,27 S3TA2 167019
(b} Fmancing armangemenis
The company had accexs 10 the [oflowing undrown borrowing [acilitics s the ond of The reporting period:

As at AL at
3t March 225 It March 2024
Floating rate
Cosh eredit and overdrafl facflines from bank 15648 3,29
Term Team from bank 438
180,96 65,29

ili. Markel risk
Markel nsk 1s the risk that the ohanges in rmrlml prizes snch as Forcign cxehonge rawes snd inerest rates, that will aifeer the Company™s expense of the value of its holdings of financial msiruments. Lhe obyeetive of markel dsk management is 19 manage and
comral marka rish wp while op p the reum

within

Iragrest tane visk is the resk diat the Lo valug or fulure sash Oows of o fnuncial instrument wall (ectuute becawse of changes n marker iMerest etes. |he Company's sxposure 1o e osk of cliamess i maken inerst mes reluies primanly o the Company's
hamowangs wih Moalig NCrs) ranes

. the "5 urrom b s are linked 10 Mooy imMerest mics. dwreby resulling i the

Ihe Company avalustes the mterst mtes i (e markes o & rerutar basss (o explore the opuon of refimonemz of the borrewangs of he Company. 34
arliusLmers f s BurTowiing oogts I fine witl Uk market nucees
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Barque Hotets Private Limdted

CIN L3S191DL2MEFTCI75957

Nodes do the fmancial statements for the year coded 31 March 2625
(Al amounts ore it Ropaes sillions, unlecr othernise siated)

Expoaurt # intrran rain risk
The imterest mie profike of the Companys inkerest-bearing fimancial mstruments is #s Follows:
Noménal amound

31 March 2025 31 March 1824
Flxed-raic imntraments
Financial assels - bank doposils 6321 &6.39
Current fnancial agseis - Loans 130:00 .
Varlable-rac instraments
Financial fiabilitias - Cash eredit and pverdrall Facilithes From bartks 24387 33155
Financial liabliios - Term loans from banks 150335 166769
Financial lisbilities - Term boans from Gnancial instiutions 34509 35402

Fair value 1ensifivity analysiy fpr lixed-rate invrumems

The Company docs nod aeoount for sny fieed-rate fnancial assels or (inancial Tabllities an fair value through prodit or less. Therefore, 8 change n interest raiss a1 the reporting, date would ot affect profit or loss.

Scnsifivity analyels for variable-rate instruments

A reasonabity possible change of 100 basis points in inlerest rates at the reporting date would have Increased (decreased) equity and profit or Joss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other varisbls, remain constant

(Predt)/ boss Equity, net of tax
{incTeast) f decrease
108 bps imcreasc 10 bpa decreaze 100 bps increase 100 bps decrease

31 March 2025
Financial [iabilitics 2156 (21.56) 2).56 (21.56)

2156 (21.56) 21.56 (21.56)
I March 2024
Financial leabilidics 27.89 (27.89) 27.89 (27.89)

2189 (27.89) 17.89 (27.89)

40 Capital Manapement

The Company's palicy is 1o maintain a strong capital base 50 23 (o mainkain investor, redilor and markel confidence and 16 susiain Fulure: development of the business.,

The Board ol Dircctors secks (o mutiniain @ batance between (e bigher reaurns that might be possible with highar levels of bormowing and the advamiages and secarity aflorded by a sound capital pogwicn.
The Company moedlors capidal using loan 16 value (LT} method 1o ensure thad the loan Lo value docs nol increase beyond 6% on any given porling dalo al company level,

The Company i nol subject o cxiemally impesed capital requirements.

As a part of s capital management policy, the Company did a0l have any defaubs i the repaymen of loans and iierest, Further, there have bem no loan covenant defanlis.




Bargue Hotels Private Limited

CIN LSSIRIDLIOMPTCLTS0ET

Nodes 10 the finanrial seatemmenls for the vear ended 31 March 2025
(Al amounts are in Rupees miffions, vrlers clherwise sinied)

41 Disclosure as per Ind AS 27 - Scparue Financial Statements

Name of subpidiary Princigal activity

Faulmech Hospitalily Private Limied Houels

The sbowe i in subsidiary is at cost.
According lo paragraph 4ta} of bd AS { 10: Consolid

Finaneial

Principal plsce of
business

Qrwoership interest at
A ab At
M March 3025 31 March 2024

100

100%

the Company has clecied nol Lo prepare consolidated financial staomenls 43 i 5 a

wholly-owned subsidiary of SAMHI Hotels Linited baving ils place of business i hudia and instend propares separste (nancial swatements. The consolidated linancial
slatements ase prepared 2 SAMHI Hotels Limited level and kep at their placo of business (e Caspia Howls Dalki, disrier conirs rosting, oppasite pwaxy (ymla ouer rng
road, haiderpur, shalimar bagh, north west, delhi, Inis, | HO0AE). The Company holds 100% shares in Paulmech Hospilality Private Limiled having a place of busieis by indr

42

Dues (o mkre, small and mediom supplicrs

The ampunts remaining unpaid 1o amy supplicr as al the end of the year:

Principal amount

Interest thereon

The amount o interest paid by the buyer s per the Micro Small and Medium Enlerprises
Developmant Acl, 2006 (MSMED A, 2006)

The amount of paymants made 1o Micrd and Small Suppliers beyond the sppomied day
during cach agccounting year

The amound of inverest dug and payable for te period of detay in making payment (which
bave: been paid bt beyond 1he appoinied day during the year} but writhout adding the Intenest
specified under MSMEL Act 2006

The amount af interest accrued and remaining unpaid al the end of ¢ach aconunting year

The amount of further inerest remaining due and payable cven in the succoeding years, ool
such date whin the inkorest dues 25 above are acluelly paid to the soall cucrprise for the

purpose o disalk By & deductibd diture under section 23 of the MSMED An
200,
The has identifiod which have provided goods and services 1o the Com)

Digclosures wnder Micrs, Small and Medlum Enterprises Develapment Act, 2006 (MSMED)

As at
31 March 1835

Asat
31 March 2ol

ithe diseh

pR-]
090

05

059

0.99

enberpriscs, as defined under Micry, Small and Medium E ks D

Act, 2006 (MSMED]. A

such enterpriees a9 a1 31 March 2025 and 31 Mlmhlozlhxbmmd:il;lhefmid Based on i received and
43 Lowso disclesares
Draaily of reat expenses:
Far the year cnded 31 | For the yoar ended 31
Particutars March 2025 March 2034
Expenize relaling (o variable iese payments 133.74 11851
Tatal Rant 13374 185t

The olfowing 1able presonts a malurity anadysls of cxpocted undiscounted cash Mows for keaso lisbikties:

Ad 3t 3 March 2025

Az nt 3 March B4

Farticobars
-1 year 1347 45.61
1-2 ey 3162 3347
2:3 years 4537 59,28
Mare than 5 years 20273 21237
Todal Leage payments 315.1% 36093

The reconciliation of fease linbiliies is as follows:

As wi 31 March 2025

As at 31 March Hiz4

Particulars
| Oponing bakunce 17140 19163
Addiions - 10.73
Amounty recognived in of Frofit and Loss as mieest cxpanse 1585 18 69
Payment of lease lbiliies (45810 199 65)
Closing Balance (Refer Note 21 and 26) L41.44 ITLd%
Mo eurrent lens: liabilities 107.97 12559
Current Tease labilities 1347 434]|

Leases emiered by the Company are long tetm o muslure and (he underlying keased propertics are being used s hotel propenics

share of progect <xpenses and iber cost mewrred. Qut of ths allocated cost, INE 32,40 (3¢ March 2024 « [NR 1,13 has beemn
of projects.

5 VB30 COBNS e e e

6.50

L)

013

k-

G54

pany and which qualify under the definition of micro and small
ing! in respect of the amounts payable 1o
ilabie with the Company,

During the current pear. SAMUI 1otels Limited (the | bolding Componyh has alfocaned ot premses amcuning LR 98,75 (31 March 2024 - INR 12125} as Company's

1o copinal work-in-progr




Barque Fatel Privede Limited

CIN LS50 DL2VEPTC1 75957

Notus to the Bnancial ssatements for the year andad 31 March 2025
(i umonnis are in Rupees miftions, wriless othervwite statad)

45 Mew stamdards and interpretalions, wot yet sdopted

Ministry of Corporase Allairs ["MICA') natilics mew ards or d 10 the existing ardls under C s {Tndian A ing fards) Rubes as issued from ime to time. On 12 August 2024, 9 Scpternber 2024 and 7

May 225, WCA smended the Compani (Indian ing Rubes, 2015, s belom:

Tnd AF ZP - The Efects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Ratkes

Mindstry of Corporate Affaies (“MCA') has amendsd “Ind AS 21 The Effects of Changes in Forcign Gxchange Rates™ through Companics (Tndian A ing A Rubes, 2025 nodified on 7 May 2025, This

! rehaie & ng for o when a currency is not cxchangeable ino arother cumency,
44§ Raios a5 req by Sewedule 111 to the C Act, MLk
Ralis i limesY Numeratar Denominaer 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 Imcreasef (decrease) Remavks
%
Currcnt Ratio In times Taal Ctrvent Total Current 033 Q.28 B4% | Cument ruio increased duc 1o inler
Assels Ligbilities corporale loan provided w hokding
company,
Dicht- Equity Ratio In times Total Borrowings | Tolal Gty ) X 54 =12% | Smce the veriance i3 lows than 299
there is no regquiremem 1o discloas the
reason
D Servics Coverage Ratia In imes Eamings belore [omerest Paymenis + 1.97 L4 B9%|Debt  Sorvice  covirage oo has
Froance oosis, Principal Ropayments mproved dee bo Incrcase in amings
depreciation and before finaoce costs, depreciatlon and
amonisation, tax isation, % and P
and saccptional ilems
oS

Relum on Equity Ratio In% Loss Rar the year | Average Total Equity 19.4%% 4 58%%, -516% | Renan on equity ratic hes improved

duc to rodtion 0 bosscs  and
improved bainess achivity during te

ourmend year,

INvEnbory IUmOer Fatio * In times Coat of goods sold | Average Iventory HA NA NA HA

Trade Receivables turnover ratio In nmes Revediae rom Average Trads .00 12 4% | Since the vanance is loss than 35%
opcranons. Receivables thete is ne regquirement ta dischose the

Es0n.

Trade payables tumows rutio In times Cost of metenials | Avorage Trade 488 502 =3%|Since the variance i less than 25%
ctmmumed + Other | Payables there b no tequitement to disclose the)
CXPETISES CRsML

Nl capital wmever ratio It 1mes. Revenwe from Avierage working 312 (L1E) 0% | Increase is dus o increase in revenie
operations capital Fram operalhons.

Nt prefii rano In% Loss lor the year | Revenwe from 11.74% =170 -T92%|Net proft ratlo Jmproved  due 10|

operations |mprovement in business  activiny
during the year.

Rewrm oo Capiial smpheyed In% Profitf{loss)  befon:| Capial Employed - 12.17% 921% 3% |Retum on capital cmployed rario|
finance costs  and| Tangible Net Worth + improved dwc to improvenent in
laxes Total Borrowings busess amivity during the year.

Return on investmant 1 In% TInteress (Fimamce | Imvcsimen HA MA Ha NA
Incom]

The Company has not presenicd the Following ratios due Lo the reasons given below:

* Luventory nanover ratio; Smee the vahye of invendony s imsignificant a3 compared to the 1ol assis.
# Relurn sa imvestments: Since te Company imacsts sumpiu ieMporary faods in short-tarm bank deporslis aod the income gencrated from i is T gnifeart 1o total memover,

47 (ther dandory imfarmatien
1) The Company docs nt have amy Benami properry, where any procceding bas beon midakd or peoding against the Company for holding any B anami property,
(i) The Company docs nohave any tramsactions with companics struck off:
“The Comnparry docs not have any chorget or satisfaction which |3 yet 1o be rgistered with ROC beyond the statutory poricd.
“The Company has ot traded ar iovested in Crypio currency or Virta] currency during the fioaocial yoar.
(v} The Company has not advances o kaned or investod funds ko 2ny atber pecson(s) o entiry(ics), including forcign cutities ies) with he und img thai the | liary shall:
(8} direetly or indirecly kend or imvest in olher persons oc entatics identified in any manncr whatsoover by or on behalf o the Compeny (Ulimate Bencficiarcs) of
1) provide any guarantec, sceuriny o the Hke 1o or on behalf of the Ulimare Beochiciacics

() The Company has ot rectived any food from any prson(s)-ar antiey(ics). including forelen cntitecs (Funding Parry) with the: undersianding (whether tecorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
fa) dirczaly of indircerly lend or invest in other persons or eatitics idenufcd in amy mannar whaisogver by or on behalT ol the Fundng Party (Uitimate Benefickarics) or
{bj provide any guaranice. security orthe like on behalf of the Ullimate Beocficiarics.

{vii) The Company docs not bave aoy such mansaction which is nat cecorded in the books of accounts Lat has been sumrendered or disclosed as wooms during the year in the @y assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such s,
search of survey or any other relovand provisions of the Income Tax A [961)

{viii) The Company s not been declared 2 willful defaulier by any bank o ather Jender (as defied under the Comypanics Act, 2013}, in I with the guidelines oo willful detaub

(in}The titk: deeds af'i prop tother than & izs where the Company 15 e kssee and the Iease agreements are duly execwied i favour of the lessee) disclgsed in the financial saements are held in the rame
ofthz Company. Howewer, sriginal dilc deeds arc held by tuster during the year ended 3| March 2023

1x} The Compary has been sanctioned working capital imit in excess of live crome rupers. in aggregate, from banks or fingacial instiwions on the basis of’ security of gumrenl sssets. As per the lerme of sanction fencers of such Nmits,
thirc are 60 requitcents on the Company 10 subI quaniarly reams of #atoments with such bank or finzpcial indintion

(41 The Company bas not granted any Inams ot advanees in the patwe of hoans o promoters. direehons. KMPs aod the related partics {a5 delincd under Companics Act, 20031 enther severally or jointly with amy ooy person 1hat ane
repayable on demand or withoul specifying any ferme or pariod of repayment

i) The Company has used the b ings from bank and nandlal institation for e specific purposs for which it was (ke

(v} The Comprany hes complicd with the number of kayers prescribed under the Companns Acy 2013

fxiv) The Conpany has nor uuered ko amy scheme of B which has an iNg FMpcL on ewrant or proves lnuncual years

{xvh The Campeny has ol wevahied its propenty, plind and Tinyhuling right-of-use asscrsp or i ety of Bk duning vurrent or pravious years




Barque Hatels Private Limited

CIN USST0 DL 200APTC 175857

Notes to the Tmaacksl staements Gor Ihe yoar epded 30 March 2925
(A amctonts are in Rupees millions, unless otkervwice srotad

48 Impademaat of asser

Impairwtent testing for cash-gemersting onis

I accordance with Ind AS 36 "Impairment of Assets”, the Compeny had identificd individusl botels {consisting of property, plant and equipment, Fight of use assets and other inangible sssis) 25 & sop cash g ling unil for the

purpese of mpa egvicw, tically assesses whether thert is an indication that an assct may be impaired (including impainmont reversal) wsing 3 comparison berwoen carrying vale of assets in books and the
value, R bk value is congi a8 higher of fair valuc bess costs of disposal and vabuc i use,

Recoverable smownt is the valuc in we of the holel and is hased on discounicd cash Mow metbod which was classificd as a level 3 fair value in the faie valu: hisrarchy due to the inchssion of ono o more wiebservable inputs. There has

been no change in the valuvarion 1echoique bs compared to previaus years,

As a1 31 March 2025, impairment loss recogrised m books in respect 1o the cammylng vakse of property, plant and equip right of and ather intangible assos s as Rllows:
Azt Asat 1 April 1024 Impabrment boss! | As ot 30 Marceh
(Reversal 2005

3279) 132791
R108 (R2.08) =
4506 - 45.06
931.30 - 93.30

mT' )| 1183

* During the current fmancial year ended 31 March 2025, the Company kas remeasured the carrying value of ths assers for Holiday Tnn Express - Punc - Hinjewadi and Punc - Pimgni and reversed the immpairmen loss of TN 75,29 (oo
o depreciation) recorded in books in earller years, The reason for reversal of impai is dog kg improved achus] p of this CGU » d to bedgeis, The same has beon recerded 25 gain on reversal of Impairmend under
the head excepional Remin Lbe coment year.

Based o the mmpal analysis carmied ot by the no further imypai loss i5 required 1o be recorded in the fnanciz| stlernents in the cuent year

The cash flow projections inclede specific estimaics. for five years and an Exit mublipl; thereafter. The wrminal growth rate has boon detmmined based oo management’s estimale of the kng-lerm compond sonual growth rce,
consisint with the assumplions that a marke! partielpant woold make

Ag 21 31 Miarch 2024, impairment oss recognised In books in reyport o ihe camrying value of property, plant and equipments. right of use xsseis and other intnggible assets Is as follows:

Asset As at L April 2023| Impalement boss! | As 4 30 Mareh
(Reverssll 2824
Hodidey Inn Express - Pune, Hinjewadi i) . L)
Holiday Inn Expeess « Pune, Pi 2205 - 3108
Holidsy I - Nashik_ Ambad 45.06] = 45.@
Heliday Inn Express - Chennar, OMR 93.30 - 93.30)
Holiday Inn Exgress - Hyderabad Baniam Hills ® 4393 (4393 .
Fotal 297.13 gds.qsit 253,20

* During the current financie] year ended 31 Macch 2024, the Company has remasurcd the carrying value of i asssts for Holiday Inn Express - Hyderabad, Banjora Hills and reversed the impairment boss of TNR 31,18 (0e of
dwhlion]rwomdInbmhhwﬁzrmmmmﬂnrmalnfinuinmn[sdleloiwmnwdmlpﬂﬁnmofﬂlisCUUasc«medmhm,mamhshmmdedsglhmmddln’paimmm
the head excemionl item in the previous year,

The key hoves used in the estimation of the bl smount 2o 3ot oun below,
Astmmptinng
Az ar Asat

31 March H25 30 March 2024
Discount rale Pre i / Post Tax L120% 7 13.00%% 13.20% 7 12.00%,
Average Room Revenue (ARR) growih rie Mo 15% 3% Lo 15%
Termiral Value EBTTDA muliiple 16,67 tmes 1667 Gmes
Oczupancy rake 65% Lo 86% 31% w 6%
“The: discount raiz wed a the tme of rocording, the impairment chargo during the yew: ended 31 March 2020 was |1.40%.
Brsed on the impai testing performed, the behieves that any bly possiblo change in the key assummptlons would nol camse the Tecoverable amount o b lower than carying amownt of te CGU.
As per our report of cven date amched
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